T %A

J

-
B

1903

FE
PROCESSER j2-31-05

JUi 23 2008

THOMSO
FINAR IR,

%SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC:£

2005

~ ANNUAL
REPORT




)

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
1650 W. JACKSON
OZARK, MO, USA 65721
417 883-4549 FAX 417 883-2723

Dear Stockholder,

We had a challenging and exciting year at SLS International, Inc. in 2005. We started the year with an
influx of a significant amount of cash from the sale of our Series C Preferred Stock and a move to our
new headquarters building in Ozark, Missouri.

These events provided the opportunity to initiate our planned expansion of our Commercial business and
to enter into the retail Consumer Electronics business. To market this expansion, in June 2005 we entered
into a promotion agreement with Mark Burnett, executive producer of reality programs such as Survivor,
The Apprentice with Donald Trump, and Rock Star:INXS. We also entered into a 100-store test market
program with Wal-Mart stores to sell our Q-Line Silver home theater system, which we developed in
conjunction with Quincy Jones. Unfortunately, sales of the Q-Line Silver home theater systems were
below expectations, in part due to Wal-Mart’s restrictions against promotional activity during the test
market and our lack of brand-name recognition among retail consumers.

On the other hand, sales of our core, non-retail lines of loudspeakers continued to grow at a healthy pace,
supporting a total revenue increase of approximately 97% over 2004. The growth was led by our Cinema
line of loudspeakers, which accounted for 17% of total sales. We expect our Cinema line to be a growth
leader in 2006 and beyond. We also introduced our first speakers using our patented Evenstar digital
amplifiers and the initial reviews have been extremely positive. Our business plan calls for us to begin
integrating this amplifier technology in many of our speakers in late 2006 and 2007 as well as introduce
stand-alone amplifiers to sell to our Commercial and Cinema customers. We expect amplifier sales to
become a significant portion of our revenue growth in the future and a substantial profit generator as the
projected margins for these products well exceed the margins of our current speaker products.

We also expect retail sales to be much stronger in 2006 and beyond. In May 2006, our Q-Line Gold
home theater systems began selling in Best Buy locations, totaling over 600 retail stores. The Q-Line
Gold home theater systems will be featured on the popular television reality show The Apprentice with
Donald Trump. We are optimistic about these events, as we anticipate the feature on The Apprentice to
drive sales at Best Buy, unlike our test market at Wal-Mart, which had no supporting promotional
activity. ‘

In addition and even though we do not have any distribution channels set, we have completed tooling of
one model of our new patent pending noise-canceling headphones and the initial working prototypes are
receiving exceptional comments from test listeners. It is not certain when we will produce these
headphones for sale, but we expect them to be well-received once they come to market.



As aresult of the dlsappomtmg launch into the retail busmess in 2005, we incurred significant cash losses
and have been encountering some liquidity issues that have affected our operations and our ability to
fulfill our objectives. We are working with a variety of pames in an effort to alleviate these liquidity
issues, as further ‘described .in the attached annual | report “In. February 2006 we sold our corporate
facilities resulting in a $4,000,000 cash infusion and in May 2006 we entered into an accounts receivables
agreement that will allow us: to factor our recelvables and have access to the cash from sales in a more

tlmely manner.

There is little doubt that our financial results may have been disappointing to some in 2005. But we did
almost double the previous year’s sales for the third consecutive year. We did expérience significant
growing pains for a variety of reasons, but we are exc1ted about our prospects in 2006 and beyond. We
continue to receive validation that the sound quality _of our-loudspeakers and our amphﬁers exceeds our
competitors and we believe this advantage will lead to our ultimate-success in the audio business.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and management of SLS, we thank you for your continued support.
Smcerely, ' o L L g o

John'M. Gott ‘ ,
Chalrman of the Board and Ch1ef Executive Ofﬁcer o
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PART -1

ITEM1. BUSINESS

We manufacture premium-quality loudspeakers and sell them through our dealer networks. The speakers
use our proprietary ribbon-driver technology and are generally recognized in the industry as high-quality systems.
We sell a Professional Line of loudspeakers; a Commercial Line of loudspeakers; Home Theater systems; a line for
recording and broadcast studios; a line for contractor installations and touring companies; a line of in-wall, in-ceiling
and outdoor loudspeakers; and a line for the cinema and movie theater market.

From the early 1990°s through 1999 we derived substantially all of our revenue from marketing, renting,
selling and installing sound and lighting systems under the name Sound and Lighting Specialist Inc. In June 1999,
due to the favorable customer acceptance of our custom-designed loudspeaker systems, we ceased these historical
operations and began focusing all efforts towards becoming a loudspeaker manufacturer and selling to dealers and
contractors on a wholesale basis. As a result, we have been essentially in a development stage, as we are bringing to
market products that we introduced in 2000 and 2001 and designing and bringing to market additional products.

One key element of our strategy has been to raise customer awareness by entering into endorsement and
promotion agreements with several music and entertainment industry performers and producers, including Gordon
Sumner (professionally known as “Sting”), Quincy Jones and Mark Burnett. Further, in an effort to begin selling to
the retail market, our corporate sales department has recently targeted major “’big box” retailers. In 2005, these
efforts resulted in a 100-store test market of our Q-Line Silver home theater system (developed in conjunction with
Quincy Jones) at a Fortune 50 retailer. In 2006, we plan to initiate sales of our Q-Line Gold home theater system
(also developed in conjunction with Quincy Jones) at a major U.S. electronics retailer. We anticipate the launch of
this retail program to coincide with a feature of the Q-Line Gold on the reality television show “Apprentice,”
produced by Mark Burnett, in the second quarter of 2006.

SLS International, Inc. was formed on July 25, 2000 and had no previous operations. On the same date, this
corporation merged with Sound and Lighting Specialist Inc., its sole shareholder, and SLS International, Inc. was the
surviving corporation. In 2004, we acquired Evenstar, Inc. through a merger with and into our subsidiary Evenstar
Mergersub, Inc. The information i in this section should be read together with the financial statements, the
accompanying notes to the financial statements and other sections included in this report. Our executive offices are
located at 1650 West Jackson, Ozark, Missouri, 65721, with telephone number (417) 883-4549.

Our website is www.slsloudspeakers.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K (or Form 10-KSB) filed with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission are available on our website. Our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q (or
Form 10-QSB) and current reports on Form 8-K are not yet available on the website, but we will provide electronic
or paper copies of these reports free of charge upon written request.

Recent Events

On March 9, 2006, we announced the signing of a master Vendor Agreement with Best Buy Co., Inc.
Under the terms of the Vendor Agreement, Best Buy will distribute the new Q Line Gold Home Theater Surround
Sound System in 618 Best Buy locations throughout the U.S. commencing in May, 2006. The agreement provides
that Best Buy will purchase the first 3,090 units of the Q Line Gold Home Theater Surround System that we supply.
Following the sale of the initial order of 3,090 units, all additional units wili be supphed to Best Buy on a
consignment basis.

Development of Ribbon Driver Loudspeakers

The function of loudspeakers is the accurate reproduction of sound delivered to an audience, whether in
small or large venues. Loudspeakers traditionally have consisted in part of a component called a compression driver
to achieve high-volume sound. The compression driver makes the mid-range and high frequency or treble sounds
and a woofer makes the low frequency or bass sounds. Compression drivers consist of a diaphragm enclosed in a
chamber. The diaphragm is typically formed as a partial sphere, similar to a ball that has been cut in half. The edges
of the diaphragm are then wound many times with a fine electrical wire called a voice coil. Electrical current from
an amplifier is sent through the wire and the diaphragm vibrates to produce the sound wave. The diaphragm is
enclosed in a chamber with the sound exiting out of a relatively small hole that increases the velocity of the sound,




similar to forcing air or water through a small hole to increase its velocity. The disadvantage of the compression
driver is that before the sound waves are forced through the small hole they first bounce around inside the chamber
and become distorted, which tends to produce its own resonant sound resultrng5 in lrstenmg fatrgue for audiences.

Early versions of compression drivers used a draphragm made of a linen- based manmade resin material.
Today, compression drivers use a diaphragm made frorn aluminum or titanium and can produce the same high
volume but with higher frequency sounds. Although-today’s compression drivers are superior to. those of the past
due to the new materials, the negative aspects of producmg its own sound still exist to a degree because of the nature
of the design of the compression driver.

Ribbon drivers work in a different manner than compressiOn drivers. The diaphragrn of‘ the ribbon driver is
a flat piece of mylar plastic or, in the case of our ribbon drivers, a high temperature Kapton plastic. These materrals
are considerably thinner and lighter than the lrnen or even the aluminum or titanium dlaphragms of the compression
drivers. The ribbon diaphragm is laminated on one side with a thm coatmg of aluminum. This aluminum is then
chemlcally etched to leave wire-like traces of aliminum that act as a voice coil, vibrating the diaphragm when
current is applied. The diaphragm of the ribbon driver is not in a chamber and is open and vrsrble to the air. The
sound waves are not restricted and therefore they do not have the resonant, and therefore dlstorted properties of the
compression driver. Because the diaphragm of the ribbon driver is so thin and light, it reacts qulckly to the electrical
signal and does not introduce new or resonated sounds created by the material of the draphragm 1tself resulting in a
more pure reproduction of the sound source without addmg tones from the ribbon driver. .. |

1

o In 2000 we retained Igor Lev1tsky an electro-acoustics engineer, to develop a new technology ribbon
driver for us. We requested that he develop two different-sized ribbon drivers and we paid a fixed fee for his work.
The ribbon driver that we have developed uses new lightweight high-powered magnets and plastrcs that can
withstand high temperatures. This design enables the speaker system to, have 1ncreased power- handlrng ability and
higher sound volume with substantial reliability and clar1ty ‘ 3

‘As we developed our r1bbon drrver line of loudspeakers we relied on our Tef 20 computer acoustic
measurement system to analyze and measure sound wavés. This system is the 1ndustry,standard used by most of the
major loudspeaker manufacturers in the design and manuifacture of loudspeaker systems. Our Tef 20 system
indicated that the ribbon driver systems that we were designing weré superior in several ways to compression driver
systems. The ribbon drrver systéem had a smoother frequency response. The level of mid-range sound and treble
sound was more even and therefore the loudspéaker reproduced sound in a more natural manner. Also, the ribbon
driver did not produce the same level of distortion when played at higher sound pressure levels, as-compared to the
compressron driver, These attnbutes resulted in a posmve customer reaction to the quallty of sound

The market for the ribbon driver product llne is new and’ growing, Our future success 1s'uncerta1n because
the loudspeaker market is experiencing rapid technologlcal advances, changing customer needs and evolving
industry standards. To realize our expectations regarding our operating results; we will depend on:

-o ,  Market acceptance of our ribbon driver products o .
e Our ability to compete in qualrty, prlce ‘and customer service- for our, products
L. ! ;'Our ability to develop, in a trmely manner new products and servrces that keep pace with
developments in technology , ' »'3”:
. - Our abrlrty to meet changing customer requrrements
. Our ability to enhance our current products and servrces and deliver them efﬁcrently through

-

appropriate d1str1butron channels . ‘ : : |

. We estrmate that we spent $124 379 in 2005, $77,065 i 1n 2004 and $31,435 m 2003 on research and
development act1v1t1es None of these costs are borné drrectly by our customers A .




Products

We sell our speaker systems in seven product lines:

. The Professional Contractor Speaker System, a more expensive “Professional” line

L The Universal Series Speaker System, a less expensive “Commercial” line

. The Home Theater Speaker Systems

. The Studio Series, for recording and broadcast studios

L The Ribbon Line Array (RLA) Series, for contractor installations and touring companies

o The Design Series, consisting of in-wall, in-ceiling and outdoor speakers for home theater and

commercial installations

. The Cinema Line for the cinema and movie theater market

Sales of the Commercial line and Professional line of loudspeakers began in 2001. The Home Theater
Systems, the Studio Series, the RLA Series and the Design Series were all developed in 2002 and 2003. In
March 2004 we displayed our Cinema line of loudspeakers for the first time at the annual Show West Cinema trade
show, and in December 2004, we made our first installation of cinema systems using ribbon drivers.

Our Professional Contractor Speaker System line now consists of eighteen models of speaker systems, each
model consisting of a speaker cabinet and components of ribbon drivers that provide the treble sounds and woofers
that provide the bass sounds. This line is usually sold to large contractors and installed in churches, theaters, school
auditoriums, casinos, night clubs and touring production companies.

Our Commercial line, the Universal Series Speaker System, consists of lower-cost speakers that are
designed to be sold by music stores for orchestras, disc jockeys and the less expensive commercial market. There are
twelve models of different size, with less expensive components that produce varying sound levels and area
coverage capabilities. These models are equal in quality to, but do not produce the sound levels of, our Professional
Contractor Speaker System Line.

We recently developed a new line of loudspeakers for the home theater market. We intend to direct a
substantial effort to capture a greater share of the home theater market. The home theater market requires equipment
that uses five or more speakers placed around a room. This configuration provides the listener with “surround
sound” similar to a movie theater experience. Almost all current movies are now produced in surround sound, which
uses at least five speakers plus a sub-woofer system. Our Home Theater Loudspeaker System consists of four
models that use the smallest unit of our Professional Contractor Loudspeaker System as their basis.

In 2005 we developedA in conjunction with Quincy Jones, a line of 5.1 Home Theater systems called the
“Q-Line.” We launched the Q-Line Silver in 2005 in a 100-store test market at a Fortune 50 retailer. We intend to
launch the Q-Line Gold in 2006.

Our efforts in home theater marketing have led us to market and offer in-wall and in-ceiling speakers for
the home theater and commercial segment of our industry. These products are called our Design Series and are being
specified in many installations.

Due to the unique design of our ribbon drivers we have developed a new series of speaker systems for the
contractor installation and touring sound reinforcement markets. These products are part of our new RLA Series.
This line has been receiving high acclaim in the industry and we have installed this product line in many prestigious
locations.

We have developed two new models of speaker systems for the recording studio and broadcast markets and
have added them to our existing in-studio speaker that was originally part of our Professional line. We are now
designating these three different speaker models as our Studio Series.




We re-packaged certam models of our Professmnal Contractor Sound Systems and Universal Series for the
cinema and movie theater market by s1mpl1fy1ng the cabinetry. In'a typical movie house, the speakers arenot
displayed in view of the public, which allows for simplified cabinetry. The new cabinetry is designed to be less
costly, as are the other components, which we expect to provide our representatives with a cost advantage in
marketing our system to cinema.owners. ‘At present, a total of ten models have.been repackaged for this line. They
were introduced to cinema compames in 2004 and sales of the Cinema Line grew at a rap1d pace in 2008.

Revenue from our nbbon driver product lines is expected to account for a material portron of our revenue
for the foreseeable future. Our financial performance will depend on market acceptance of our ribbon driver
technology and products. The sound system industry continually introduces technological developments frequently
announces new products, and has evolving industry standards and changing customer requirements. As a result, if
our ribbon driver technology and product line do not rapidly achieve sufficient market acceptance we may not be
able to achieve expected revenues or profits. L R . ;

Sales of each product line over the last three yéars, as a percentage of total sales; were as follows:

Product Line =~ - - ) ’” ) : ©o 2008 © - 2004 - i 2003

RLA Series o ! S C413% L -0 4L1% ) ©55.7%
Cinema Line =~ : ST 166% Sl 35% 1 0

Professional Contractor - | o L 11.9% P 14.2% i o 15.9%
Home Theater o B IR 11.4% F139% 10.2%
Universal Series D ‘ T T 8% C140% L 8.6%
Design Series L ' S 6.4% L 65% 15%
Studio Series S o 16% 13%“\“, T 27%
Miscellaneous ‘ , L 3.0% 5% T 54%

Miscellaneous revenue primarily consists of spare and replacement parts. -

Manufacturmg And Sourcmg N T ’ e
T . . : D T

We generally desrgn and manufacture our own cabmets for our product hnes and on oc¢casion contract
certain models manufactured by independent, established, local and other woodcrafters. These manufacturers
construct the cabinetry to our specifications. Our ribbon drivers are either directly manufactured or purchased from a
non-affiliated manufacturér. The manufacture of our own ribbon'drivers has resulted in a meamngful reduction in
costs, as well as greater quality ‘control. and we expect that it will'enable our products:to be more competitively-
priced. We do not manufacture the woofers used in our speakers: The principal suppliers of our woofers are Behsle
Acoustics, Eminence, PHL, Beyma, and Seas Speaker Component Manufacturers ‘

We use suppliers in foreign countr1es to produce components that are used in'some models of our rlbbon
drivers and our ‘headphonie elements. Also, products used in our consumer and-home theater prodict lines are
manufactured by companies offshore. These companies ‘are diverse and produce many products for-other leading
electronics companies and have capacities to deliver product quantities that far exceed our expected needs.

~ " Our sources of supply of other component sub-parts are all competitively priced and we have a sufficient
number of other sources of supply available to us should the need arise for additional components. If an existing
relationship with any current supplier terminates, we do not expect to have any difficulty in replacing that source.

Our manufacturing and assembly operations for-our core products, including our commercial and cinema
lmes are performed at our headquarters in Ozark Mrssoun All of our fixed assets aré located m the United States.

Sales And Marketmg

Our corporate sales department and our independent consultants are building strong relationships with
potential customers including several of the world’s leading “big box” retail outlets. Also, the introduction of our
Cinema Line in late 2004 and 2005 has been well received, resulting in rapid growth of this product line in 2005.
These early results indicate that the Cinema Line will be a good source of revenue in the cormng years.

One key element of our strategy has been to raise customer awareness by entermg into endorsement and
promotion agreements with several music and entertainment industry performers and. producers including Gordon
Sumner (professionally known as “Sting”), Quincy Jones and Mark Burnett. Further, in an effort to begin selling to




the retail market, our corporate sales department has recently targeted major “big box” retailers. In 2005, these
efforts resulted in a 100-store test market of our Q-Line Silver home theater system (developed in conjunction with
Quincy Jones) at a Fortune 50 retailer. In 2006, we plan to initiate sales of our Q-Line Gold home theater system
(also developed in conjunction with Quincy Jones) at a major U.S. electronics retailer. We anticipate the launch of
this retail program to coincide with a feature of the Q-Line Gold on the reality television show “Apprentice,”
produced by Mark Burnett, in the second quarter of 2006.

On March 1, 2006, we had a backlog of approximately $377,000 in orders, compared to approxirnately
$182,000 on March 31, 2005.

Domestic. In addition to advertising in trade journals and attending industry conventions for promotion and
sale of our products, we have established a network of dealers, contractors and distributors. Currently, we have
approximately 200 dealers for our Professional and Commercial lines, 20 dealers for our Home Theater line, and 15
international distributors for our Professional, Commercial, and Home Theater lines. These outlets sell our products
in approximately three-quarters of the U.S. and 15 foreign countries. The dealer agreements may be terminated
without cause by either party on 30 days notice.

International. We are also engaged in marketing and promotion internationally. Our international business
involves a number of risks, including:

* foreign currency exchange fluctuations

) political and economic instability

. difficulty in managing distributors or sales representatives

* . tariffs and other trade barriers

. complex foreign laws and treaties including employment laws

Because our sales are in U.S. currency, foreign currency exchange fluctuations could materially affect us
negatively. A decrease in the value of foreign currencies as they relate to the U.S. dollar could make the pricing of
our products more expensive than products of our foreign competitors that are priced in foreign currencies. Because

of the fluctuating exchange rates and our involvement with a number of currencies, we are unable to predict future
operating results.

As a percentage of total sales, sales outside the U.S. accounted for 14.9% of sales in 2005, 20.5% in 2004,
and 27.4% in 2003. :

Competition

The market for loudspeakers is highly competitive, with competition based primarily on product
performance, brand recognition and price. Our speakers compete favorably in both product performance and price,
but we lack brand recognition. In addition, most of our competitors are larger and more established companies with
larger technical staffs, larger marketing and sales organizations, and significantly greater financial resources than we
have. As a result, such competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and
changes in customer requirements. They are able to devote greater resources to the development, sale and proriotion
of their products than we are able to devote. They may develop products that are superior in certain respects to our
products or may develop products that achieve greater market acceptance.

The nature of the market for loudspeaker products is highly competitive, with constant innovation and new

technology. As a result, our products may not compete as favorably in performance and price to products that our
competitors may introduce in the future.

Our success will depend, in part, upon our ability to continue to increase sales in our targeted markets. We
may not be able to compete successfully with our competitors and the pressures from competitors may have a
material adverse effect on us. Our success will depend in large part upon our ability to increase our share of our
target market and to sell additional products to existing customers. However, future competition could result in price
reductions, reduced margins or decreased sales of our products.




Proprietary Technology e Co . L. I

We are owners of proprletary nbbon driver. technology for our. PRD 500 models and PRD lOOO models
and we have one patent apphcatlon directed to our ribbon driver technology. L L

On September 5, 2002, we filed a ‘patent application entitled “planar tibboh electro- acousnc transducer with
high SPL capability and adJustable dipole/monopole low frequency radiation™in the U.S. Patent Office. Although
the patent application has been filed, we cannot be certain that a patent will issue from the appllcatlon or that the
patent would give us an advantage over our competitors. The planar ribbon transducer allows for a greater ﬂexrblllty
in frequency responses required for different applications, such as high-fidelity consumer systems and multiple-
driver line arrays. The different internal volumes of the.transducer allows for different low-frequency characteristics
for the transducer. Also, due to the design of our ribbon driver transducers, they do not produce the level of
distortion as compared to conventional compressron driver and dome tweeter transducers that are used by our
competltors S S . R

“On March 12, 2004, we acqu1red Evenstar, Inc. ,bya merger with and 1nto ot subs1d1ary, Evenstar
Mergersub, Inc. As a result we became the owner of Evenstar s two patents that issued on May 13 2003 and
September 21, 2004 for Evenstar’s digital amplification technology, which provides for substantially reduced
production costs compared to amplifiers of comparable quality. These patents are directed to a Glass D switching
audio amplifier incorporating a four-state modulation that includes input-to-output dr1ve feedback signal isolation,
dual topology output filtration and a low-inductance board layout. Since the acquisition of: Evenstar Evenstar’s
founder, an electrical engineer who joined SLS after we acquired his company, has been developmg several models
of the Evenstar amplifiers and making them ready for production. We introduced one zof the models at the Audio
Engineering Society convention in the fall of 2004 where it received a favorable response “The first Evenstar self-
amplified SLS speakers became available in the fourth quarter of 2005 and are receiving favorable reviews by
industry professionals. Also, several Evenstar-models have been developed for consumer products similar to the new
Q Line systems, and we expect to 1mplement our des1gns into some of these new systems that are currently in the

| I

development stage. - B P g

- On-May 9, 2005 we ﬁled a provisional patent appllcauon in the U.S. Patent Ofﬁce d1sclosmg anew
Evenstar amplification technique incorporating a novel modulation scheme that greatly reduces distortion, noise, and
electromagnetic interference. We then filed a non-provisional patent application on June 13, 2005 to protect-all , -
common subject matter and benefit disclosed within the provisional application. We entitled this new technology
“Sigma Delta Amplification” and have incorporated it into our powered studio monitor PS8R which has been
available since November 2003. Two additional powered studio monitors, PS1266 and PS1065, are also being -
designed to offer the Evenstar Sigma Delta Amplification technology and are expected to be available in 2006. We
further plan to incorporate this technology along with the previous Evenstar patents in our powered professional

products with expected ava1lab1hty in.2007. N L PRSP R

* On January 5, 2006, we filed a patent appllcatlon in the uU.s. 'Patent Office for a transducer headphone and
method for reducing noise. The  patent applrcatron discloses planar rrbbon transducer technologles that we are
incorporating into our newly’ developed ribbon noise- cancehng (RN C) headphone Our RNC headphone offers
dramatrcally 1mproved noise reductron and higher sound quallty than other noise- cancelmg headphones currently
being offered in' the headphone 1ndustry Moreover, the ﬁlmg of the patent apphcanon moves us a step closer to'an’
anticipated product launch targeted for the thrrd quarter of 2006. The RNC headphone 1ncorporates a mrcrophone a
planar ribbon transducer and an-electrical circuit for producing and tfansmitting an anti-noise signal that cancels the
sound. waves of noise inside the.ear cup of the RNC headphone. The technologies disclosed in the patent application
also may be applicable to drfferent Varlat1ons of headset products that may bnng new opportumtres to us 1n the .
future. o oo

Laws of some foreign'countries do not protect or enforce proprietary rights to the same extent as.do laws in
the Un1ted States. Also, our domestic and 1nternat10nal competrtors may develop other technology that produces
results similar to.our technology. We expect.that some loudspeaker models may be subJ ect to patent 1nfnngement
claims as the number of patents issued for products of our,competitors grows. As a result third parties. may assert
patent infringement claims against us in the future, and some of the ¢laims may not be resolved in our favor. Any
such claims, with or without merit, could be time-consuming and may result in costly lltrganon or may require us to
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. The royalty or licensing agreements, if they become necessary, may not
be available on terms that are favorable to us, or may not be available at all. In addition, we may be forced to




commence litigation in the future to protect our trade secrets or proprietary rights, or to determine the validity and
extent of the proprietary rights of others. Any litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of our energy
and resources. :

Employees

As of March 1, 2006 we have a total of 52 employees, four of which are executive, six are administrative,
seven are in marketing and sales, one is in technical communications, six are in engineering, and 28 are in
production. In the past, we have employed additional temporary and part-time employees to meet production
obligations and fill orders. There is presently no labor union contract between any union and us. We do not
anticipate our employees will seek to form or join a union for the foreseeable future.

Business Strategy

Sales by our Professional, Commercial, Cinema and Design Series distributors, as well as sales by our corporate
sales department to “big box “retailers, are expected to be our primary source of business in coming years. We have
promoted our Professional, Commercial, Cinema and Design Series products primarily through our dealer and sales
representative network, conventions and trade magazings.

As our products gain recognition for their high-quality sound in the Professional and Commercial markets,
we expect to capitalize on our reputation to market extensively to retail consumers. Our initial foray into the retail
market has begun with the distribution of our Q-Line home theater systems. The Q-Line Silver has been sold in a
test market of 100 stores at a Fortune 50 retailer. The retailer prohibited any marketing of the product while in such
stores, but the product gained some brand recognition as our loudspeakers were used on the reality-based television
series “Rock Star: INXS.” In 2006, we plan to initiate sales of our Q-Line Gold home theater system at a major U.S.
electronics retailer. We anticipate the launch of this retail program to coincide with a feature of the Q-Line Gold on
the reality television show “Apprentice,” produced by Mark Burnett, in the second quarter of 2006. Achievement of
our business plan depends in large part on a significant sales increase in 2006 as a result of the launch of the Q-Line
Gold home theater system.

We intend to continue to develop products for additional segments of the consumer speaker markets,
including personal sound systems that include headphones, MP-3 players, personal stereo docking stations, personal
computer sound systems, and gaming system sound products as well as car audio and video systems. All of these
markets have been reviewed and our technology has been implemented in several prototypes to compare to the
competition. Our business plan includes the launch of one of these new products in 2006.

We manufacture our own ribbon drivers, which provides cost savings compared to the cost of purchasing
compression drivers or ribbon drivers from third parties, as well as greater quality control. We believe that both the
cost savings and the quality of the lower distortion, as demonstrated by our Tef 20 analysis device, provide us with
competitive advantages to establish a place in the home, commercial and professional loudspeaker markets.

At the appropriate time, we intend to investigate possible strategic alliances with key industry participants
to strengthen our image, our product components and our distribution pattern. We cannot be certain that a future
alliance opportunity will present itself or, if an opportunity is presented, that it will result in a profitable working
relationship.

Our ability to develop and effectively market our existing products and new products is highly speculative
and dependent on the availability of capital, our suppliers” performance, consumer acceptance of our products,
performance by our competitors, and other risks, some of which are set forth below under the heading “Risk
Factors.”

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves various risks, including those described in the risk factors
below. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the other information included and
incorporated by reference in this report, before you decide to invest in our common stock. If any of the following
risks, or any other risks not described below, develop into actual events, then our business, financial condition,
results of operations, or prospects could be materially adversely affected, the market price of our common stock
could decline further and you could lose all or part of your investment.




Risks R¢lated To Our Busmess ‘ ‘ o . L .

' We have a htstory of losses and may not be profi table in the future tf we do not achteve suj]' icient revenue to
absorb recent and planned expenditures. ‘

We have experienced signiﬁcant operating losses since investing in the development of ribbon driver
technology in 1998 and, through' December 31, 2005 have an accumulated retained deficit of approxnnately
$36,799,515. If we do not achieve continued revenue growth sufficient to absorb our reécent and planned
expendmlres we -could experlence add1t10na1 losses in future perlods

We will depend on Addmonal Capital. .

" Our ability to 1mplement our strategy and expand our operanons largely depends on our access to capital.
To implement our long-term strategy, we plan to make ongoing expenditures for the expansion and improvement of
our product line and the promotion of our products. To date; we have financed our operations primarily through
sales of equity and the issuance of notes. We will need to issue additional equity or other securities to obtain the .
financing required to continue our operations. However, additional capital may not be available on terms acceptable
to us. Our failure to obtain sufﬁc1ent additional capital could curtail or alter our growth strategy or delay needed
capxtal expendltures . ) 4 Ry i

Our dependence upon third- party dealers for sales makes us vulnerable to the efforts of others which are
beyond our control. _ .

Our d1str1butors may not continue thelr current relationships Wlth us and they may give higher prlonty to
the sale of our competitors’ products In addition, to be effective, distributors must devote significant technical,
marketing and sales resources to.an often lengthy sales cycle. Our current and future d1str1butors may not devote o
sufficient resources to market our products effectively and economic or industry conditions may adversely affect
their ability to market or sell for us. A reduction in sales efforts or a discontinuation of distribution of our products
by any distributor could lead to reduced sales and greater net losses. ‘

We may not gain market adceptance of our Ribbon Driver Technology

- We believe that revenugs from our ribbon driver product lme will account for a material portlon of our
reventie for the foreseeable future. Our future financial performance will depend on the market acceptance of our
ribbon driver technology and products. To date, we have had limitéd sales of products contamlng)our new
technology ribbon drivers. If our'ribbon driver technology and product line do not gain sufficient, posmve market
acceptance, we may not achieve anticipated revenue, proﬁts or continued viability.

" In the Loudspeaker Market, we are subject to intense competition.

Although our ribbon dnver loudspeaker products are relatively new and emergmg, the markets for
loudspeaker products are extremely competitive and we expect such competition to increase. The market for sound
enhancement prodiicts in general is intensely competitive and sensitive to new product | 1ntroduct10ns or
enhancements and marketing efforts by our competitors. The market is sustained by ongoing technological
developments, frequent new product announcements and introductions, evolving 1ndustry standards and changing
customer requirements. We expect to experience increasing levels of competition in the future. Although we have
attempted to design our loudspeaker systems to compete favorably with competitive products, we may not be able to
establish and maintain our competitive position against current or potential competitors; Aggresswe competition -
could cause us to have sales and proﬁtab111ty below expectations. . o o

{
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If we are unable to hire or retain qualified and skilled personnel as necessary, we may not' be able to develop
new products or successfully manage our business. "

We believe our success w1ll depend in large part upon our ability to 1dent1fy attract and retam highly
skilled manager]al engineering, sales and marketing, finance and operations personnel.. However we may not be
successful in identifying, attractmg and.retaining such personnel Our success also depends to a great degree upon
the continued contributions of our key management, engineering, sales and marketing, ﬁnance and manufacturing
personnel, many of whom would be difficult to replace. In particular, we believe that our future success depends on
John Goétt, Chief Executive Officer. We presently maintain key person life insurance on Mr. Gott‘ln the amount of
$5 m11110n and we have an employment contract with hlm that expires in June 2008. If we expenence the loss of the




services of any of our key personnel, we may be unable to identify, attract or retain qualified personnel in the future.
This could make it difficult for us to manage our business and meet key objectives, or achieve or sustain profits.

Our patent application may not be issued and even if it is issued, we still may not be able to adequately
protect the patent or our other intellectual property. '

In September 2002, we filed a U.S. patent application on one portion of our proprietary ribbon driver
technology. Our success will depend in significant part on our ability to obtain, preserve and defend U.S. patent
protection for this technology. The patent may not be issued from the patent application. The issuance of a patent is
not conclusive as to its validity or enforceability and, if a patent is issued, it is uncertain how much protection, if
any, will be given to our patent if we attempt to enforce it. Litigation, which could be costly and time consuming,
may be'necessary to enforce our current patents or any patent issued in the future or to determine the scope and
validity of the proprietary rights of third parties. A competitor may successfully challenge the validity or
enforceability of a patent or challenge the extent of the patent’s coverage. If the outcome of litigation is adverse to
us, third parties may be able to use our patented technology without payment to us. Even if we are successful in
defending such litigation, the cost of litigation to uphold the patent can be substantial. On March 12, 2004, we
acquired Evenstar, Inc., by a merger with and into our newly formed, wholly owned subsidiary, Evenstar
Mergersub, Inc. Evenstar is the owner of one issued patent and a second patent that was issued in September 2004,
The patents are for Evenstar’s digital amplification technology, which provides for substantially reduced production
costs compared to amplifiers of comparable quality. We filed two additional patents in 2005 and one more in
January 2006.

It is possible that competitors may infringe our patents or successfully avoid them through design
innovation. To stop these activities we may need to file a lawsuit. These lawsuits are expensive and would consume
time and other resources. In addition, there is a risk that a court would decide that our patent is not valid, that we do
not have the right to stop the other party from using the inventions, or that the competitor’s activities do not infringe
our patent.

Our competitive position is also dependent upon unpatented technology and trade secrets, which may be
difficult to protect. Others may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and
techniques that would legally circumvent our intellectual property rights. Currently, we have not registered any
potential trademarks and we may not be able to obtain registration for such trademarks.

The use of our technologies could potentially conflict with the rights of others.

Our competitors, or others, may have or may acquire patent rights that they could enforce against us. If our
products conflict with patent rights of others, third parties could bring legal actions against us or our suppliers or
customers, claiming damages and seeking to enjoin manufacturing and marketing of the affected products. If these
legal actions are successful, in addition to any potential liability for damages, we could be required to aiter our
products or obtain a license in order to continue to manufacture or market the affected products. We may not prevail
in any legal action and a required license under the patent may not be available on acceptable terms or at all. The
cost to us of any litigation or other proceeding relating to intellectual property rights, even if resolved in our favor,
could be substantial. :

We must expand our operations to commercialize our products, which we may not be able to do.

We will need to expand and effectively manage our operations and facilities to successfully pursue and
complete our commercialization efforts. We will need to add personnel, including management, and expand our-
capabilities, which may strain our existing managerial, operational, financial and other resources. To compete
effectively and manage our growth, we must train, manage and motivate a substantially larger employee base,
accurately forecast demand for our products and implement operational, financial and management information
systems. In the event that we fail to expand or manage our growth effectively or if we cannot recruit qualified
employees, our commercialization efforts could be curtailed or delayed.

We may acquire other businesses or technologies, and we may not be able to integrate and operate the
acquisitions.

In March 2004 we acquired Evenstar, Inc. From time to time, we have considered the acquisition of other
businesses or other technologies, and we continue to consider such acquisitions as opportunities arise. Some of these
businesses and technologies, including Evenstar, are directly related to our business and others are not. If we make




any such acqu1s1trons we may not be able to efficiently combine our operations with those of the businesses or
technologies we acquire without encountering difficulties. These difficulties could result from a varrety of issues,
including incompatible operating pract1ces corporate cultures, product lines, or technologies. As a result, we may
have difficulties in integrating, managing and operating the acqurred busmesses and technologres

Risks Related to our Securities

' . . e

Since our common stock is ‘thinly traded, it can be subject to extreme rises or declmes in price, and you may
not 'be able to sell your shares at or above the price you paul T . 1‘

lI
iYou may have difficulty reselhng shares of our common stock You may not be able to’ resell your shares at
or above the price you paid, or at a fair market value. The stock markets often. experlence significant price and.
volume changes that are not related to the operating performance of 1nd1v1dual companies. These broad market |
changes may cause the market price of our common stock to decline regardless of how well we perform asa,

company. ' - . S L o ;

Future Sales of Common Stock could depress the prtce of our Common Stock. ‘ ‘[,

" ‘Future sales of substantial amounts of our commion stock pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of
1933 or otherwike' could have a material adverse impact 6n the market price for the common:stock at the time. On
March 6, 2006, there were approximatély 15,746,613 outstanding shares of our common stock held by stockholders
that are deemed “restricted securities” as defined by Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The resale of many of these
shares has been registered on a regrstratlon statement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
Upon sale pursuant to such registration statement, the shares would no longer be restncted securities. Also, under
certain circumstances, these shares may be sold without 1 regrstra‘uon pursuant to the prov1srons ‘of Rule 144 In’
general under Rule 144, a person (or persons whose shares are aggregated) who has héld the stock for one year
may, under certain circumstances, sell within any three-month penod a number of restricted securrtles that does not
exceed the greater of 1% of the shares outstanding or the average weekly trading volurne during the four calendar
weeks preceding the notice of sdle required by Rule 144. In addition, Rule 144 permits, under certain.circumstances,
the sale of restricted securities without any quantity hmrtatrons by a non-affiliate who has held the security for two
years. Any sales of shares by stockholders pursuant to a regrstranon statement or ‘Rule: 144 may have a depressive
effect on the price of our common stock. . - . Sy

We may have liability for prior issuances of our stock.

,From May 1, 2002 through May 10, 2004, warrant holders exercised 2,545, 800 of our Class A Warrants
and 22,600 of our Class B Warrants for a total of 2,568,400 shares of, common stock. The warrant holders paid an
aggregate of $1,340,700 for these exercises. From May 1, 2002 through May 10, 2004 the reg1stratron statement
that we filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission to register the common stock issuable upon
exercise of these warrants may not have been “current” because the registration statement had not been amended to
include our most recent audited, frnancral statements. As a result, the former warrant holders may be entitled to
demand a rescission of their previous exercises of common stock. We intended to, but ultimately.did not, make a
rescission offer in 2005 to all warrant holders who exercised warrants during the period from May-1, 2002 through
May 10, 2004. The rescission offer would require us to repurchase the shares of common stock 1ssued upon exercise
of the warrants at their original éxercise price, $.50 for the Class A Warrants and $3.00 for the Class B Warrants, at
each warrant holder’s option. If all warrant holders accepted the rescission offer, we would be required to pay
$1,340,700 plus interest, which amount would be reduced to the extent of the proceeds from dny;sales of the
underlying commion stock by the former warrant holders Acceptance of the rescission’ offer by all former warrant
holders could have a material adverse effect. The current market price is over the $. 50 exercise prrce of the Class A
Warrants, and if that remains tnle we would expect no former holders of Class A Warrants to accept any rescission
offer. The current market price is below the $3.00 exercise price of the Class B Warrants Only 22 ,600 Class B
Warrants were exercised during the rescission offer period, makrng our potential rescission lrabrllty to the former
Class B Warrant holders equal to $67,800 plus interest, which amount would be reduced to the extent of any sales of

the underlying common stock by the former warrant holders ‘ ‘ o

We did not make the rescission offer in 2005, as we focused instead on caprtal -raising, new product .
launches, and other activities. In 2006, we intend to determine whether to make the rescission offer or to allow the
statute of limitations to continue to run. through their expiration under apphcable state law
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Shares of Convertible Preferred Stock may not have been validly issued.

In 2001 - 2003, we sold shares of our Convertible Preferred Stock, which is sometimes reflected in our
financial statements as our Series A Preferred Stock. We subsequently discovered that the certificate of designation
for the Convertible Preferred Stock had not been filed, and we made such filing in December 2004. The delay in
filing the certificate of designation may have resulted in the shares of Convertible Preferred Stock not being validly
issued under Delaware law. To date, we have issued 1,891,473 shares of the Convertible Preferred Stock, all of
which were issued prior to the filing of the certificate of designation and 44,000 of which remain outstanding on
March 21, 2006. All other shares have converted to common stock on a 10-to-1 basis, at a conversion price of $0.25
per share. We believe that the conversion to common stock cures any issues related to the potential invalid issnance
of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock. We may have rescission liability for the 44,000 shares that have not
converted, subject to the prior expiration of applicable statutes of limitation.

Certain restrictive covenants may limit our ability to raise additional capital and affect other aspects of our
business.

In our January 2005 private placement of Series C Preferred Stock and warrants, we entered into a
securities purchase agreement with the investors. The agreement and the certificate of designation for the Series C
Preferred Stock contain numerous covenants that limit our financing and other activities, including those described
in the following paragraphs. In late 2005 and early 2006, we have been attempting to raise additional capital, and the

restrictions contained in this agreement and the certificate of designation, have created a significant impediment to
our capital-raising efforts.

So long as at least 3,750 shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are outstanding and held by the original
purchasers thereof, we may not pay any cash dividends, make distributions, redeem or repurchase any capital stock,
Or Tepay or prepay any previously existing indebtedness of ours other than as expressly required pursuant to the
terms of such indebtedness.

So long as any shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are beneficially owned by the original purchasers
thereof, we may not issue or sell any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase our common stock, or
any other securities directly or indirectly convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for our common stock, at

an effective conversion, exchange or exercise price that varies or may vary with the market price of our common
stock.

Prior to January 3, 2007, the investors in the January 2005 private placements have a right to participate in
any issuance of equity securities, equity-linked securities, or convertible debt, subject to certain exceptions. The
participation rights may prevent other potential investors from making offers for, or entering into agreements to
purchase, our securities and thereby limiting our ability to raise capital.

If we issue our common stock at a price per share less than the then-current exercise price of the 6,000,000
warrants issued together with the sale of our Series C Preferred Stock, the exercise price of the warrants shall be
adjusted downward pursuant to a formula set forth in the warrants. ’

We are obligated to redeem our Series C Preferred Stock upon the occurrence of certain events.

Pursuant to the terms of the certificate of designation for our Series C Preferred Stock, we are required to
redeem the Series C Preferred Stock upon the occurrence of certain events, including the following:

o our common stock is suspended from trading on any of, or is not listed or quoted (and authorized)
for trading on at least one of, the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, the
NASDAQ National Market, the NASDAQ Capital Market or the OTC Bulletin Board for an
aggregate of ten or more trading days in any twelve-month period;

. the registration statement that registered the resale of shares of common stock issuable upon
conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock and exercise of the warrants, after being declared
effective, cannot be used by the holders of Series C Preferred Stock for the resale of all of the

common stock issuable to them for an aggregate of more than 20 days, subject to certain
exceptions;
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. we make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or apply for or consent to tll'e appointment ofa
receiver or trustee for us or for a substantial part of our property or busrness or such a receiver or
trustee shall otlierwise be appointed;

. bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or llqurdatron proceedings or other proceedrngs for the
relief of debtors shall be instituted by or against us or any subsidiary of ours and if instituted
~against us or any of our subsidiaries by a third party, shall not be dismissed Wrthm 60 days of thelr
initiation;

. 'if at least 3,750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock are outstandmg and held by the original
: purchasers thereof and we do any of the following: !

}

(a) sell, convey or dispose of all or substantrally all of our assets; !

(b) consummate specified mergers, consolidations or business combmatrons

(¢) engage in transactions providing for sales or issuances by us or our stockholders that result
in the purchaser owning or having the right to acquire greater than 35% of the outstanding
shares of .our common stock (calculated on a fully diluted basrs), or

¢ (d) issueor agree to issue any equity or equity-linked securities or. debt that is convertlble into
e equity or in which there is an equity component subject to certam exceptlons

. ¢ we either fail to make any payment with respect to any of our mdebtedness in excess of $250,000,
subject to certain exceptions, or default under any agreement binding us, subject to certain
exceptions; or . ;

e we breach any material term under- the cemﬁcate of desrgnanon for our Senes € Preferred Stock,
the'Series C Preferred Stock securities purchase agreement, the reglstratlon rights agreement or the
warrants attached to the Series C Preferred Stock subject to certain except1ons :

Any such redemption would be made at a premium in excess of the purchase pnce of the shares of Senes C
Preferred Stock, as determined by a formula set forth in the certificate of designation for the Series C Preferred
Stock. These requirements may cause us to pay a s1gn1ﬁcant amount of ‘money to redeem the Series C Preferred
Stock or may cause us to avoid taking certain actions in order to prevent ‘the occurrence of such redemptron
requirement. :

We may be requtred to pay substanttal amounts to the investors m our January 2005 Prwate Placement upon
the occurrence of certam events

In connection with the January 2005 pnvate placement of our Series C Preferred Stock and warrants, we.
agreed to file a registration statement to register the resale of sharés of our common stock by the mvestors in the
private placement. We have an obligation to register additional shares that may be issuable from trme to time as a
result of potential adjustments to the preferred stock and warrants. We filed a. regrstranon statement to regrster the
resale of these shares, and the regrstratron statement was declared effectrve in February 200s. ’f

We could be required to pay amounts to each rnvestor upon the occurrence of certain events, including (a)
the number of the investors’ shares registered on the registration statement is léss than the number then issued or’ .
issuable to such investors pursuant to the Series C Preferred Stock and warrants; (b) sales of our common stock can
not be made pursuant to the registration statement; or (¢) our common stock is not traded, listed or included for
quotation, as applicable, on the OTC Bulletin Board, American Stock Exchange or other stock exchanges or certdin
automated quotatlon systems Each of the foregorng events are, to some extent, beyond our control

l
¢

. If any of the foregomg events occur, then we Would be requ1red to pay each, 1nvestor an amount equal to the
product of (x) the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock held by. such investor (plus any shares of preferred
stock that have been converted into shares of our common stock then held by such mvestor as if such shares of
preferred stock had not been so converted) multiplied by the per share purchase price, multlphed by (v).02 for each
thirty- day period prior to the elimination or termination of such event. Assuming that the 6,000,000 shares of Series
C Preferred Stock orlglnally issued remain the number outstanding during such per1ods then the amounts payable
pursuant to such provisions are $300,000 each thirty- day period. -
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

This item is inapplicable, as we currently have no unresolved staff comments.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

On February 10, 20006, following the sale of our headquarters, we entered into a Lease Agreement whereby
we agreed to lease our headquarters, approximately 150,000 square feet, at 1650 W. Jackson, Ozark, Missouri from
FRS, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company. Pursuant to the agreement, we agreed to lease the property for ten
years, with a lease rate of $37,500 per month for the first five years and $43,750 per month thereafter, with
adjustments and additional charges set forth in the agreement. Under the lease, we are responsible for expenses for
taxes, insurance, maintenance and utilities at the property. For accounting and tax purposes, the lease is to be treated
as an operating lease. The sole member of FRS, LLC is Rick Gregg. John M. Gott, our CEO and a Director, is a
Manager and a Member owning a 50% interest in Bull Creek Ranch LLC. Rick Gregg is also a Member owning a
50% interest in Bull Creek Ranch LLC. Bull Creek Ranch, LLC is a former owner of the property at 1650 W.
Jackson, Ozark Missouri, but was not a party to the purchase and sale, or the lease, described above. Nevertheless,
due to the common ownership of Bull Creek Ranch LLC by Messrs. Gott and Gregg, FRS, LLC may be deemed as
an affiliate of SLS International, Inc. for certain purposes. We believe that the sale of real estate and lease described
above were consummated on arm’s-length terms.

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2003, we completed a private placement of shares of our Series A Preferred Stock. One of the investors
in the private placement was Dr. Christopher H. Brown. Dr. Brown purchased 20,000 shares of the Series A
Preferred Stock for $50,000. After we closed the offering, Dr. Brown claimed that he submitted two separate
subscription agreements and two separate checks, one of which was in the name of Dr. Brown and the other in the
name of his professional corporation, Christopher H. Brown, B.S. Dent., D.D.S., P.A. He specifically claims that his
professional corporation sought to purchase an additional 24,000 shares of our Series A preferred stock for $60,000.
We have informed Dr. Brown that we received only one subscrlptlon agreement ‘and one check, and we have cashed
only the one check. Nevertheless, Dr. Brown filed suit against us, alleging breach of contract and negligence, in the
U.S. District Court for the Western District of North Carolina (Christopher H. Brown, M.D., v. SLS International,
Inc., filed April 29, 2005). His First Amended Complaint seeks 24,000 preferred shares in exchange for his payment
of $60 000, or alternatively “money damages in an amount to be determined at trial, based on SLS’ failure to timely
issue [him] 24,000 shares of preferred stock,” in addition to other unspecified rehef

In February 2004, we entered into an agreement with the owners of SA Sound B.V. and SA USA, Inc.,
providing us with an option to acquire such companies at any time prior to February 27,2004 for a purchase price of
370,000 euros. We paid 50,000 euros for this option. The option agreement entitled us to a return of the option
purchase price if the sellers failed.to negotiate such stock purchase agreement in good faith, or if our due diligence
disclosed material adverse facts about the compames After completion of our due diligence, we determined not to
exercise the option, and we asserted our right to a return of the option purchase price. The sellers challenged the
return of such price and we sued the escrow agent in the Supreme Court of the State of New York (SLS
International, Inc. v. B&B Beneer B.V., Campex Holdmg B.V, Serge Van Tuyn and Marcel Van Tuyn filed
July 27 2004). RN . ,

ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

This item is 1napp11cab1e as no matters were submltted to a vote of our security holders dunng the quarter
ended December 31, 2005. -
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PART-II . .

ITEMS. MARKETFOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES :

Our common stock began trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “SITL.OB” on
June 27, 2001. On October 13, 2005, we began trading on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol “SLS.”
The table below sets forth, by quarter, the sales information fér our common stock ds'reported on'the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board and American Stock Exchange in our last two fiscal years. Prior to October 13, 2005, this
information reflects bid prices, and thereafter sales prices: This information reflects inter- dealer pr1ces w1thout retail
mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not represent actual transactrons ,

i

Period : ‘ ' . f" L S Low. ‘ ,_High _

Quarter Ended December 3 1, 2005 o $0.97 - .$1.99

* Quarter Ended September 30, 2005 o D $1.73 . s252°
Quarter Ended June 30, 2005 . S ... 8190 . %267 .
Quarter Ended March 31, 2005 I - %186 . .$3.04.
Quarter Ended December 31,2004 D $1.47 ‘ $2 90
Quarter Ended September 30, 2004 C S 8125 '$2. 85
Quarter Ended June 30, 2004 T ‘ : Co$221 °$3.00
Quarter Ended March 31, 2004 . . : $2.65 - 83.46

On March 21, 2006, there were approxrmately 231 holders of record of our common stock based on
information furnished by our transfer agent. On March 21 2006, the closing price of our common stock on the
American Stock ‘Exchange was $1.13 per share We urge you to obtam current market quotatlons for shares of our

common stock

h )
) .

~* We have not paid any cash dividends in our past two ﬁscal years and do not anticipate paying cash
dividends in the foréseeable future. We intend to-retain future earmngs to fund thé development : and growth of our
business. Any payment of dividends in the future will be at the drscret1on of our board of drrectors and will be
dependent upon our earnings, ﬁnancral cond1t1on caprtal requrrernents and other factors deemed relevant by our

board of drrectors ‘ . —
Sales of Unregistered Securmes, and Repurchases of Securmes, durmg the 2005 Fourth Quarter

We did not issue any shares of common stock that were not registered under the Securmes Actof 1933, as
amended, and we did not repurchase any of our secyrities, during the quarter ended December 31, 2005.

4

R 4
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Equity Compensation Plans

On December 31, 2005, we had the following securities issued and available for future issuance under

equity compensation plans:

©
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issnance

(A) Under Equity Future
Number of Securities to (B) Issuance Under
Be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights In Column (A))
Equity compensation 2,270,000 shares of $1.62 per share 1,875,000 shares of
plans approved by common stock common stock
security holders
Equity compensation 4,141,529 shares of $2.28 per share 0

plans not approved common stock

by security holders

$1.70 per share of
common stock

1,875,000 shares of

Total 6,411,529 shares of
. common stock

common stock

For a description of the equity compensation plans not approved by our security holders (which consist
solely of individual compensation arrangements for the benefit of consultants or pursuant to promotion agreements),
see note 9 to our financial statements beginning on page F-1.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Revenue $ 353,797 $ 790,582 § 968,245 § 2,040,575 $ 4,015,099
Operating income (loss) (1,001,462) . (2,215,26) (4,125,208)  (8,646,333) (11,409,071)
Net loss (1,040,174)  (2,242,325) (3,979,341)  (8,599,899) (10,004,388)
Net loss per share $ 0.06) $ (0.14) $ 0.23) § (0.38) § 0.29)
Cash and cash equivalents 48,390 4,240 1,482,786 10,712,858 195,573
Total assets 407,543 463,907 2,677,791 13,662,996 10,613,247
Long-term obligations 2,321 0 15,931 10,951 7,367
Shareholders’ equity {262,166) (562,262) 2,248,489 12,645,461 8,749,853

15




ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINAN CIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OVERVIEW .

We manufacture premrum quahty loudspeakers and sell them through our dealer networks The speakers
use our proprietary ribbon-driver technology and are generally recognized in the industry as high- quahty systems.
We sell a Professional Line of loudspeakers; a Commercial Line of loudspeakers; Home Theatre systems; a line for
recordmg and broadcast studios; a line for contractor installations and touring companies; a line of in-wall, in-ceiling
and outdoor loudspeakers; and a line for the cinema and movie theater market.

From the early 1990°s through 1999 we derived substantially all of our revenue from marketmg, renting,
selling and installing sound and lighting systems under the name Sound and Lighting Spemahst Inc. In June 1999,
due to the favorable customer acceptance of our custom-designed loudspeaker systems, we ceased these historical
operations and began focusing all efforts towards becoming.a loudspeaker manufacturer and selhng to dealers and
contractors on a wholesale basis. As a result, we have been essentially in a development stage, as we are bringing to
market products that we 1ntroduced in 2000 and 2001 and desrgmng and bringing to market addmonal products,

SLS International, Inc. was formed on July 25, 2000 and had no previous operatlons On'the same date, this
corporatron merged with Sound and Lighting Specialist Inc., its sole shareholder, and SLS Internatlonal Inc. was the
surviving corporation, The information in this section should be read together with the financial statements ‘the

accompanying notes to the financial statements and other sections included in this report

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004. For the year ended
December 31, 2005, revenue 1ncreased 97% to $4,015,099 from $2,040,575 in 2004; which 1tse1f wasalll%
increase from the $968,245 in revenue achleved in 2003. This continued “doubling of r revenue is'a result of the
further roll-out of our product line and customer acceptance of our products. Our newest product | hne the Cinema _
Line accounted for 16.6% of total 2005 revenue compared to less than 4% in 2004 representmg an increase of more
than eight fold in dollar volume in one year. Our “core” lines of the Professional, Design, and RLA series all
increased in excess of 75% in 2005 over 2004 levels. o s

Gross profit percentage decreased to 24% in 2005 from 26% in 2004. During 2005, we moved our plant
from a 35,000 square foot facility to our new location in Ozark, Missouri, which has 150,000 square feet. While our
new facility significantly increases our production capacity; at the present time it is belng underutilized until our
volume of manufacturing activity increases. The mové to the new building has increased our fixed plant costs. This
increase in manufacturing overhead accounts for approx1mately 6% of our sales and therefore has reduced the gross
profit rate by that amount. Had it not been for these additional costs our gross profit for 2005 wotild have increased
to 30%. Improvement in our gross proﬁt is expected as manufactunng volume increases faster than the fixed costs
assoc1ated with our new facrhty . :
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General and administrative expenses for 2005 increased to $12,413,227 ($3,029,408 of which were non-
cash charges) from $9,179,555 in 2004 ($5,166,737 of which were non-cash charges). The following table compares
categories of our general and administrative expenses in'2005 to 2004:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004

Non-cash G&A expense items:
Charges for stock and options issued for
consulting and investor relation
Services $ 2,500,453 $ 4,179,266
Charges for options issued to directors
and officers ‘ 372,191 87,786
Impairment charge - Evenstar, Inc. : — 848,502
Depreciation 156,764 51,183
Total non-cash G&A expenses 3,029,408 5,166,737
Cash G&A expense items:
Advertising and promotion 2,860,994 572,364
Professional fees, consulting & investor relations 2,677,415 1,409,918
Compensation 1,608,216 701,186
Travel & Entertainment 594,929 200,529
Facilities » 331,635 57,244
Office Support 299,816 77,006
Acquisitions - BG deal expired 100,000 —
Impairment charge - Evenstar, Inc — 300,000
Other cash G&A expenses 910,814 694,571
Total cash G&A expenses : 9,383,819 4,012,818
Total G&A expenses $ 12,413,227 § 9,179,555

As shown in the preceding table, our cash G&A costs increased significantly in all areas. Advertising and
promotional expenses increased a total of $2,288,631 due to increased activity in 20035 trade shows ($257,839), costs
to produce demo and promotional units ($303,900), branding campaigns to achieve name recognition with retail
customers ($1,005,805), promotional and educational videos ($52,500), and general increases in traditional media
and collateral material ($668,587). The additional 22 employees at December 31, 2005 over December 31, 2004,
including two new executives, additions to the administrative, sales, and engineering staffs, and new personnel in
production increased total cash compensation (including benefits and taxes) by $907,030. Legal and accounting fees
increased by $218,248 and consulting and investor relation services increased $1,049,249 for a total increase in
Professional Fees and Consulting costs of $1,267,498. Included in this category are costs in excess of $600,000
directly attributable to compliance and additional audit costs of the Sarbanes Oxley Act, all incurred during 2005.
Travel and entertainment costs associated primarily with more employees and increased sales and promotion
activities increased $394,400 during 2005 over 2004. The move to our new facility resulted in increased insurance,
building upkeep, and utilities amounting to $274,391.

Non-cash costs decreased by $2,137,329. Increased compensation costs from stock options provided to
officers and directors amounted to $284,405. Increased depreciation from our investment in plant and equipment
was $105,581. Total stock based payments to consultants decreased a total of $1,678,813, comprised of a $723,183
increase in investor relations programs offset by a decrease of $2,041,730 in marking and promotional programs.
Nearly all of the increase in investor relations programs arose from our CEQ’s grants of his personal stock or
options for such stock to consultants of the Company. The decrease in promotional payments is due to the fact that
most of the cost of our promotional agreements with Sting, Quincy Jones, and Mark Bumett occurred in 2004.

In 2005 we reported a net loss of $10,004,338 as compared to a net loss of $8,599,899 in 2004. The loss
from operations in 2005 amounted to $11,463,955 compared to the loss from operations in 2004 of $8,646,333.
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Other income increased to $1,459,567 in 2005, compared to-other income of $46,424 in 2004, due
primarily to-a non cash gain of $1,506,112 on the change in:the valuation of our Class D warrants and interest
income of $192,967 from certificates of deposits on handidiring 2005. This gain was pattiaily offset by the loss of
$234,000 incurred when we moved out-of our prior headquarters in Springfield, Missouri.

Year ended December 31 2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. For year ended
December 31, 2004, revenue increased to $2,040,575 from $968,245 in 2003, as a result of the further roll-out of our
product line and customer acceptance of our products. Gross profit percentage decreased to 26% i in 2004 from 38%
10 2003, primarily as a result of new personnel that were in training and sales of several large systems at high
promotional discounts.

General and admrmstratrve expenses in 2004 increased to $9,179,555 ($5, 166 737 of theh were non-cash
charges) from $4,492,237 in 2003 (81,799,248 Of which were non cash charges). ‘ o

" Included in the increased general and administrative expenses are one-time charges totalmg $1,658,889 for
promotional services provided by performing artist Quincy Jones through Global Drumz, Inc. Of these charges,
$1,408,889 are included as non-cash charges for stock and options issued for consulting and investor relations
services and $250,000 are mcluded as cash charges for consulting and investor relatron services.

In 2004, we reported an increased net loss of $8,599,859 as compared to a net loss of 33,979 341 1n 2003,
primarily as a result of the increased general and administrative expenses as well as a decreasé in'other income,
which were partially. offset by increased revenue. ‘ ;

' Other i income decreased to $46,434 in 2004, compared to other income of $145 864 in 2003 due pnmarrly
to other income recogmzed in 2003 from the write-off of accounts payable.

'

Contractual Obhgatlons
‘ B Less than C ' More than
: . . Total 1 year :_1-3 years: .3 years
Capital Lease Obligations” - : $ 11,743 $ 4376 '§ 7,367 -0-
Purchase ‘O_bligations; e ; : $ 150,000 § 150,000 -0: -0-

Financial Condition

K On December 31, 2005 our current assets exceeded current lrab1lrtres by $3,721,485 as compared to
December 31, 2004 when our current assets exceeded current liabilities by $12,229, 108. On December 31, 2005,
total assets exceeded total liabilities by $8,749,855 compared to December 31, 2004 when total assets exceeded total
liabilities by $12,645,461. The decrease in Workmg capital of $8,507, 623 was due prlmarrly to the use of cash to
fund our operatmg loss, an 1ncrease in inventory of'$2,284,648; the use‘of $3,500,000 for the February 2005
purchase of our new headquarters burldmg in Ozark; Missouri, and other 1mprovements and equipment purchases of
$1,142, 660 offset by an 1ncrease in accounts payable and other current lrabrlrtres of $849 442.

.

In 2005 2004 and 2003 we entered into consultmg agreements that requrred us to issue an’aggregate of .
4,115,452 shares of common stock; options'to purchase 100,000 shares of Class A Preferred Stock (each such share.
of preferred stock is'convertible.into 10-shares of common stock), and options to purchase 2,500i000 shares of our-
common stock. Total expenses accrued under such agreements were $3,452,802, $2,141,938 of which has-been:.; -
amortrzed through December 31, 2005, and the remainder of which is to be amortized in subsequent periods over the
respectrve terms of such agreements The d1fference bétween such total expenses and the amount amortrzed is

i e

reﬂected as unamortlzed cost of stock 1ssued for serv1ces on the balance sheet SR o S
o N

4 Accounts recervable mcreased 126% to $614 048 on December 31 2005 compared to $271 429 on ...
December 31; 2004. This i increase‘was primarily due to the mcreased sales Volume in 2005 especrally fourth quarter
of 2005 over the same perrod of2004 HED T g : : Do et

Coliae

Net ﬁxed assets mcreased o $4 925, 400 on December 31 2005, from $437 304 a year earher due
primarily-to the February 2005 purchase of our new headquarters bulldmg and the purchase of:. armotor coach and
new equiprhentyincluding ofﬁce furniture and computers R R [CEE T :
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Accrued liabilities decreased to $172,919 on December 31, 2005 from $630,503 on December 31, 2004,
because in 2004 we had $600,000 of accrued finder’s fees payable in connection with the deposits on sales of Series
C Preferred Stock, which closed in January 2005, as described below.

We have experienced operating losses and negative cash flows from operating activities in all recent years.
The losses have been incurred due to the development time and costs in bringing our products through engineering
and to the marketplace. In addition we have not paid notes payable and accounts payable on due dates. The report of
our accountants contains an explanatory paragraph indicating that these factors raise substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern.

Compared to year-end 2004, we are currently experiencing a significant decrease in our cash position, as
we only had $195,573 in cash on December 31, 2005. This decrease was caused by an increase in inventories of
$2.5 million (40% of which is represented by the Q-line Silver home theater systems), an increase in our fixed assets
of $4.9 million mainly due to the purchase of our new headquarters building in Ozark, Missouri as well as other
improvements and equipment, and the use of funds for our operating loss of $8 million; all which are partially offset
by the $4.9 million in cash received by sale of our stock. In February 2006, we sold the headquarters building for
gross proceeds of $4 million, temporarily improving our cash position. However, we still will be required to raise
additional capital in or prior to the second quarter of 2006, or our operations and our ability to continue as a going
concern will be significantly affected by capital constraints.

In 2004 we privately sold our Series B Preferred Stock for total net proceeds of $5,102,250 in a private
placement that commenced in March 2004 and closed in July 2004. We received funds from time to time upon sale
of the preferred stock and placed the proceeds into our working capital upon receipt. Each share of Series B
Preferred Stock was convertible into ten shares of our common stock six months after purchase. Prior to conversion,
the shares have no voting rights. Attached to each preferred share are ten of our class C warrants. Each Class C
Warrant has a term of three years and provides the right to purchase one share of our common stock at $7.00 per
share. The Class C Warrants are immediately exercisable and detachable from the preferred share. If the average
closing market price for our common stock is equal to or greater than $10.50 per share for a period of 30 days, then
we are entitled to repurchase such warrants, with 30 days notice, at a price of $.001 per warrant.

On January 4, 2005, we completed a private placement of our Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $15 million. The investors also received five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of
6,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The
preferred stock is initially convertible, at the holder’s option, into an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares of our common
stock, at a conversion price of $2.50 per share, subject to certain adjustments, and accrues a 6% premium to the
stated value of the shares of preferred stock, which would be convertible into additional shares of common stock.
We may redeem the warrants (or require the holder to exercise them) and may require holders to convert the \
preferred stock to common stock if certain conditions are met. On December 31, 2004, we were holding a deposit of
$8,849,420, reflected on the consolidated balance sheet as “Deposits on Preferred Stock Series C,” which was
applied to the purchase of Series C Preferred Stock on January 4, 2005.

There is intense competition in the speaker business with other companies that are much larger and national
in-scope and have greater financial resources than we have. We will require additional capital to continue our growth
in the wholesale speaker market. We are relying upon our ability to obtain the necessary financing through the
issuance of equity and upon our relationships with our lenders to sustain our viability.

In the past, we have been able to privately borrow money from individuals by the issuance of notes and
have sold our stock to raiseé capital. However, we cannot be certain that we will continue to be able to successfully
obtain such financing. If we fail to do so, we may be unable to continue as a viable business.

Over the last few months of 2005 and the beginning of 2006, we have been trying to raise capital in either -
debt or equity financings, but have not yet been able to obtain capital on terms that are acceptable to us. The terms
of our financing with the purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock in January 2005 have created a significant
impediment to our financing efforts. Among other issues, the terms of the Series C Preferred Stock prohibit us from
raising in excess of $10 million in debt financing, prohibit us from securing the debt with any assets other than our
inventory and accounts receivable, and require us to redeem the Series C Preferred Stock at a premium upon the
issuance of any equity. Our inventory and accounts receivable do not provide an asset base that is sufficient for
traditional asset-based lenders to provide $10 million in debt financing. In addition, potential investors have
proposed several transactions on terms that would require consent of the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock, but
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the holders have either refused to provide their consent or have required additional conditions or consideration in
order to provide such consent, and we have deemed such additional conditions or consideration to be unacceptable.
We may not be able to obtain financing sufficient to fulfill our business plan or to otherw1se maintain our
operations, or if obtained, the terms of such financing may be on terms that are excesswely costly, either directly or
as a result of their effect on ex1st1ng obligations, 1ncludmg the terms of the Ser1es C Preferred Stock

Forward Looking Informatlon

Th1s report, as well as our other reports filed with the SEC and our press releases and other
communications, contain forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements include all statements regarding our expected financial
position, results of operations, cash flows, dividends, financing plans, strategy, budgets, capital and other
expenditures, competitive positions, growth opportunities, benefits from new technology, plans and objectives of
management, and markets for stock. These forward-looking statements are based largely on our expectations and,
like any other business, are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control.
The risks include those stated in the “Risk Factors” section of this report and economic; competmve and other
factors affecting our operations, markets, products and services, expansion strategies and other factors discussed
elsewhere in this report and the dther documents we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In
light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the forward- -looking information contained in
this report will in fact prove accurate, and our actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking
statements. :

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our only current borrovln'ng is a note payable on equipment in-the principal amount of $1 1,743 at
December 31, 2005, Wthh bears 1nterest ata fixed rate of 5. 16% and matures in September 2008

We have no-other mvestments that are subject to market nsk

ITEM 8. FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
See the ﬁnanmal supplement begmmng on page F-1. . -
P Sy SLS INTERNATIONAL INC.

- . December 31 2005

Report of Independent Regrstered Public Accountmg F1rm ‘ | ‘ F-2

- ‘Consolidated Balance Sheet . RS o F-4
Consolidated Statement of Operations ST ‘ o F-6
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Deficit oo -F-7
.Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows . ' ‘ F-10
Consolidated Statement of Valuation and Quahfymg Accounts J ; F-11

Notes to Consolidated F1nancral Statements o N ‘ " F- 12

ITEMY9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

This item is inapplicable, as no such changes or disagreements have occurred:

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES"

" As of March 1, 2006, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer evaluated the
effectiveness of the des1gn and operation of our disclostire controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finarcial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2005 for purposes of preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. Based on our
assessment we concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, our internal control over financial reporting was effective
based on those criteria.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s internal contro! over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005 has been audited by Weaver & Martin LLC, an independent registered public
accounting firm. Their report appears on page F-1.

During the last quarter of 2005, there was no significant change in our internal controls over financial
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART -1IT .

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT -

Information required by this 1tem is mcorporated by reference from our 2006 Proxy Statement that will be
ﬁled within 120 days after the end of the 2005 calendar year ; RS

3

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ‘

: Inforrnatron required by this item is 1ncorporated by reference from our 2006 Proxy Statement that w111 be
filed within 120 days after the end of-the 2005 calendar year | Cr g :

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Informatron requlred by this item is 1ncorporated by reference frorn our 2006 Proxy Statement that will be
filed within 120 days after the end of the 2005 calendar ‘year. L

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED'TRANSACTIONS . I ’
Informatron required by this item is incorporated by reference from our 2006 Proxy Statement that w111 be
filed within 120 days after the end of the 2005 calendar year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES e ’

Informatlon required by this item is mcorporated by reference from our 2006 Proxy Statement that wrll be
filed within 120 days after the end of the 2005 calendar year.

i
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PART -1V

ITEM 15.

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The financial statements are set forth under Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Financial
statement schedules have been omitted since they are either not required, not applicable, or the information

is otherwise included.

(b) Exhibits.

The exhibits to this Report are listed below. Other than exhibits that are filed herewith, all exhibits
listed below are incorporated herein by reference. Exhibits indicated by an asterisk (*) are the management
contracts and compensatory plans, contracts or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this Report.

Exhibit

Where Located

Amendment and Restatement of Certificate of
Incorporation

Form SB-2 filed August 15, 2000

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation

Certificate of Designations, Convertible Preferred Stock
Certificate of Designations, Series B Preferred Stock
Certificate of Designation, Series C Preferred Stock
By-Laws

Amendment to By-Laws (Article VIII)

Amendment to By-Laws effective January 31, 2005

Specimen Certificate of Common Stock

Form of Class C Warrant

Form of Distributor Agreement
2000 Stock Purchase and Option Plan*
Form of Option*

Option Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2003, between
the Company and Steerpike (Overseas) Ltd.

Employment Agreement, dated March 12, 2004, between
SLS International, Inc. and Joel A. Butler

Consulting Services Agreement, dated November 10,
2003, between SLS International, Inc. and William F.
Fischbach

Stock Option Agreement, dated February 9, 2004,
between SLS International, Inc., and Ryan Schinman
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Exhibit 3(ii) to Registration Staternent on

Appendix A to Definitive Proxy Statement, filed
May 12, 2005

Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed J ﬁnuary 6, 2005
Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-QSB filed August 13, 2004
Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed January 6, 2005

Exhibit 3(iii) to Registration Statement on Form SB-2
filed August 15, 2000 '

Exhibit 3.4 to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed
March 30, 2004

Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed February 4, 2005

Exhibit 4(i) to Amendment No. 1 to Registration
Statement on Form SB-2 filed December 1, 2000

Exhibit 4.2 to Form 10-QSB filed August 13, 2004

Exhibit 10(iv) to Amendment No. 2 to Registration
Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 16, 2001

Exhibit 99(i) to Registration Statement on Form SB-2
filed August 15, 2000

Exhibit 99(ii) to Registration Statement on Form SB-2
filed August 15, 2000

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-QSB filed August 14, 2003

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed March 17, 2004

Exhibit 10.43 to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed
March 30, 2004

Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB
filed May 17, 2004



Exhibit

Where Located

Letter Agreement, dated May 19',‘” 2004, between
SLS International, Inc., and Kenny Securities Corp.

Promotion Agreement, dated June 2, 2004, between

SLS Intematronal Inc. and Global Drumz, Inc.

Option Agreement, dated June 2 2004 between
SLS International, Inc. and Global Drumz, Inc.

Redeemable Warrant, dated June 2, 2004, issued
by SLS International, Inc. in favorof
Global Drumz, Inc. . - T

Redeemable Warrant, dated March 23, 2004,
issued by SLS International, Inc.'in favor of
Kenny Securities Corp ‘

Strategic Alliance Agreement Addendum dated
October 19, 2004, between Bohlender-Graebener
Corporation and SLS International, Inc.

Consulting Services Agreement dated December 8,
2004, between SLS International, Inc. and
W. Curtis Hargis; Co. :

Lease Agreement, dated December 4,2004,
between Bull Creek Ranch LLC and
SLS International, Inc.

Non Excluswe Finder’s Agreement dated
December 8, 2004 between SLS International, Inc

and The Shemano Group, Inc. 1 . el

Option Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2003
between SLS International, Inc. and Beth Broday -

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated.- - -. T

January 3, 2005, among SLS. International, Inc., .
Baystar Capital II, L.P., PSO Trading IV, LLC,
HFTP Investment L L.C, and Royal Bank of
Canada

Registratiori Rights Agreement, dated

January 3, 2005, among SLS International, Inc., -
Baystar Capital II, L.P., PSO Trading IV, LLC,.
HFTP Investment L.L. C and Royal Bank of
Canada

Warrant, dated January 4, 2005, 1ssued to
Baystar Capital II, L.P.

Warrant, dated January 4, 2005, 1ssued to
PSO Trading IV, LLC

Warrant, dated January 4, 2005, issued to
HFTP Investment LL.C. - '

Warrant, dated January 4, 2005, 1ssued to
Royal Bank of Canada

! Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on‘Form IO-QSB
© filedMay 17,2004 |

) Exh1b1t 10.1 to Form 10- QSB ﬁled August 13,2004

t

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-QSB filed Angust 13, 2004
1 )

|- .
Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-QSB filed August 13, 2004

' Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-QSB filed August 13, 2004

Exhlbrt 10 1to Form 10 QSB filed November 15,
2004 o

i

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004

|
I

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-Kifiled December 17,2004
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Exhibit

Where Located

Consulting Agreement, dated January 31, 2005 and
effective as of November 18, 2004, between
SLS International, Inc. and 3CD Consulting, LLC

Promotion Agreement, dated June 14, 2005, by
and among SLS International, Inc., JMBP, Inc.
and Mark Burnett

Option Agreement, dated June 14, 2005, -
between SLS International, Inc. and Mark Burnett

Warrant Certificate, dated June 14, 2005, issued by
SLS International, Inc. in favor of Mark Burnett

2005 Stock Incentive Plan*

Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005,
between SLS International and John M. Gott*

Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005
between SLS International and Steven Lamar*

Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005,
between SLS International and Michael L. Maples*

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement
under 2005 Stock Incentive Plan*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under
2005 Stock Incentive Plan*

Real Estate Purchase Agreement, between
SLS International, Inc. and FRS, LLC,
dated February 10, 2006

Lease Agreement, between SLS International, Inc.
and FRS, LLC, dated February 10, 2006

Amendment to Employment Agreement, between
SLS International, Inc. and John M. Gott,

dated March 10, 2006 and effective

December 31, 2005*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, between
SLS International, Inc. and Steven Lamar,

dated March 10, 2006 and effective as of

January 4, 2006*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, between
SLS International, Inc. and Michael L. Maples,
dated March 10, 2006 and effective as of
January 4, 2006*

Vendor Agreement, dated February 21, 2006,
by and between Best Buy Purchasing LLC and
SLS International, Inc.

25

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed February 4, 2005

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed June 20, 2005

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed June 20, 2005

Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed June 20, 2005

Appendix B to Definitive Proxy Statement filed
May 12, 2005

Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 15, 2005

Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 15, 2005

Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 15, 2005

Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 15, 2005

Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 15, 2005

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed February 14, 2006

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed February 14, 2006

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed March 14, 2006

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed March 14, 2006

Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed March 14, 2006

Filed herewith




Exhibit
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Addendum to the Vendor Agreement between
Best Buy Purchasing, LLC and SLS International,
Inc., February 21, 2006

C(msignfnent Agreement, dated February.21, 2006,
between Best Buy Purchasing LLC and
SLS International Inc.

Product Service Agreement, dated February 21, 2006,
by and between SLS International, Inc. and °
Best Buy Stores, L.P.

List of Subsidiaries of SLS International, Inc.

Consent of Weaver & Martin LLC Indepeﬁdent
Certified Public filed March 28, 2005
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and SLS International, Inc.
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Division and SLS International, Ihc.l
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By /s/ M. MAPLES

M. Maples
(Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer)

Date: March 31, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 31, 2006.

Signature Title
/s/ 3. GOTT Chief Executive Officer and Director
J. Gott : (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ C. FOUDREE Director
C. Foudree
/s/ R. LUKE, PH.D Director
R. Luke, Ph.D
/s/ M. MAPLES Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer
M. Maples and Director
/s/ R. RING Director
R. Ring
/s/ M. MAPLES Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(M. Maples) (Principal Accounting Officer)

27



SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
DECEMBER 31, 2005

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Deficit

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-1

F-10
F-11
F-12




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC ‘
Ozark Missouri ‘ : ‘ ;

We have audited the accompanying consohdated balance sheet of SLS International, Inc. as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders® equity, valuation and
qualifying accounts, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. We also
have audited management’s assessment that SLS International, Inc. has maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsormg Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). SLS International,
Inc.’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over.
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reportlng Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over ﬁnanc1al ,reportmg based on oqr audlts..

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Overs1ght
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of the financial statements included examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of mtemal control and performmg such other procedures as we con51dercd necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. :

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and thé preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon .of the company s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over the financial reportmg may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to. the risk that that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of of comphance with the
policies may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fauly, n all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of SLS International, Inc. as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three year period ended December 31, 2005
in conforrmty with generally accepted accounting principles accepted in the United States of Amenca Also, in our
opinion, management’s assessments that SLS International, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting reporting as of December 31, 2005 is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in
Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Furthermore, in our opinion, SLS International, Inc. maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2005, based on criteria established in Internal
Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS80).




The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring
losses from operations and is dependent upon the continued sale of its securities or obtaining debt financing for
funds to meet its cash requirements. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Management’s plans with regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

WEAVER & MARTIN, LL.C
Kansas City, Missouri
February 24,2006




SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET p
.y | .

‘December 31,

C o 2005 . 2006
ASSETS = . ‘ o
Current assets: ‘ ~ . : Co
Cash _ $ 195,573 § 10,712,858
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$45,000 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 ‘ ‘ 614,048 271,429
Inventory _ 4,193,236 1,908,588
Deposits - inventory ‘ ' 316,629 50,000
Deposits - merger v , ‘ — 100,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ‘ , 258,024 192,817
Total current assets - < 5,577,510 13,235,692
Fixed assets: ‘ : ‘ )
Vehicles ‘ 283,233 - 51,949
Equipment : 483,635 234,805
Leasehold improvements . ‘ 6,488 245,681
Building ‘ ' 4,401,739 L —
S o ‘ 5,175,095 532,435
Less accumulated depreciation ‘ R ‘ : ‘ 249,695 105,131
Net fixed assets . 4,925,400 427,304
Prepaid Expense o : « 110,337 —
Total assets | L 5 10613247 § 13,662,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
. . . . !
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SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt and notes payable
Accounts payable
Customer Deposits
Accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Notes payable, less current maturities
Accrued Liabilities Class D Warrants

- Total long term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies:
Temporary Equity:

Preferred stock, Series A, $.001 par, 2,000,000 shares authorized;
66,000 and 346,873 shares issued as of December 31, 2005 and
December 31,2004

Contributed Capital - preferred

Common stock, $.001 par: 125,000,000 shares authorized on
December 31,2005 and 75,000 shares authorized on
December 31,2004; 2,568,400 shares issued as of December 31,2005
and 2,568,400 shares issued as of December 31, 2004

Contributed capital ~ Common

Preferred stock, Series B, $.001 par, 1,000,000 shares authorized;
89,700 and 196,050 shares issued as of December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004

Preferred stock, Series C, $.001 par, 25,000 shares authorized;
14,450 and no shares issued as of December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004,

Deposits on Preferred stock, Series C
Contributed capital - preferred

Common stock, $.001 par; 125,000,000 shares authorized;
on December 31, 2005 and 75,000,000 shares authorized
on December 31, 2004. 43,719,910 shares and
41,751,080 shares issued as of December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004

Common stock not issued but owed to buyers; 3,071 and 300,000 shares at
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004
Contributed capital — common
Unamortized cost of stock issued for services
Retained deficit
Total shareholders’ equity

December 31,
2005 2004
$ 4376 % 29,101
1,470,913 346,980
207,819 —
172,919 630,503
1,856,027 1,006,584
7,367 10,951
7,367 10,951
1,863,394 1,017,535
66 347
348,625 1,707,367
2,568 2,568
1,338,132 1,338,132 .
90 196
14 —
— 8,849,420
16,787,062 5,069,298
43,719 39,184
3 300
28,339,951 20,543,959
(1,310,862) (1,363,973)
(36,799,515)  (23,541,337)
8,749,853 12,645,461

$ 10,613,247 § 13,662,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Revenue
Cost of sales

" Gross profit

i
"

General and administrative expenses

.. Loss from operations

Other income (expense): -- -
-Interest expense

Interest and mlscellaneous net '
"Gain (loss) on dlsposal of fixed assets

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS |

Gain (loss) on valuation of Class D warrants

Loss before income, tax

Income tax provision

Net loss

3

preferred stock
Premium - preferred series C

L

N

4

Net 1oss available to common shareholders

o

Weéighted average shares outstanding

Basic and diluted loss per share -

1

Deemed dividend assomated w1th beneficial conversion of l

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 1 2003
S 4015099 § 2040575 S 968,245
3065827 1,507,353 - 601,213
] R . L o, e '
949272 533222 367,032
12413227 __ 9,179,555 _ 4492237
(11,463,955)  (8,646333) (4,125,205
(5354) . ( 907) (39,170)
192,967 48341 185,034
(234,158) e CT
1,506,112 gy —
1,459,567 46, 434 145864
T (10,004,388) (8 599 899) ,(3;'979",-341)
: I, M !
. (10,004,388) . (8,599.899)  (3,979,341)
(3,246,112) . (4,097,877) . (1,798,438)
(1678) — _
803258179 § (12 697 776) S (5,777,779)
$ (0.29) $ (0 38) 5 (023)
45498578 - 33, 072 988 25,496,816

b

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balance, January 1, 2003

Net loss for the year

Sales of preferred stock
Beneficial conversion of preferred
Preferred discount amortization

Stock issued from prior period sales

Conversion of preferred to
Common stock issued for services
Options issued to employees

& directors
Options issued for services

Options exercised for common stock

Amortization of stock issued-
for services
Conversion of “A” warrants
for services
Common stock warrants exercised
Other

Balancé, December 31,2003

Net loss for the year
Sales of preferred stock
with C Warrants
Beneficial conversion of preferred
Preferred discount amortization
Stock issued from prior period sales
Conversion of preferred to common
Common stock issued for services
Options issued to directors
Options issued for services
Deposit on Series C preferred stock
Amortization of stock issued for
services
Common stock cancelled
Common stock warrants exercised
Common stock issued
Evenstar acquisition
Other

Balance, December 31, 2004

Net loss for the year
Sales of preferred stock with C
Warrants
Beneficial conversion of preferred
Preferred discount amortization
Stock issued from prior period sales
Conversion of preferred to common
Common stock issued for services
Options issued to directors
Options issued for services
Deposit on Series C preferred stock
Amortization of stock issued
for services )
Common stock cancelled
Common stock warrants exercised
Common stock issued
Evenstar acquisition
Other

Balance, December 31, 2005

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Preferred Stock, Preferred Stock, Preferred Stock
" Series A Series B Deposit on Series C Discounts on
Shares Amourit Shares Amount  Preferred C Shares  Amount Preferred
315,000 § 315 — 8 — 3 — — 8 — § (233,299
1,468,300 1,468 —_— — — — — .
— — — — (3,451,720) — - 3,451,720
— — — — — — — . 1,798{438
(238,000) (238) — — — _ _ —
1,545,300 $ 1,545 — 3 — 3 — — 3 —  $(1,886,576)
—_— — 272,100 272 — — - —_
— — — — — — — (2,211,300)
— — -_— —_ — — — 4,097,876
(1,200,600) (1,200) (76,050) (76) —_ — — —
— — — — 8,849,420 — — —
2,173 2 — — — — — —
346,873 § 347 196,050 $ 196 § 8,849,420 — 3 — 3 —
— — — — (8,849,420) 15,000 15 (3,246,112)
_ — — — —_— — — 3,246,112
(280,873) (281) (106,350) (106) — (550) 1) —
66,000 § 66 89,700 § 90 § — 14450 $§ 14 § —
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Contributﬁd
Capital-Pref

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED)

Lk

Shares

Common Stock

Amount

~ Amount
Unissued

. Contributed

Capital

._For Service

Unamortized
Cost of Stock

Issued i
Deficit

Retained
Total

Balance, January 1, 2003 $41,852,183

Net loss for the year

Sales of preferred stock

Benéeficial conversion of pref

Preferred discount
amortization * ~

Stock issued from prior
period

Conversion of préferred to

Common stock lssued for
services

Options issued to employees
&directors

Options issued for services

Options exercised for
common stock

Amortization-of stock -
issued for services

Conversion of “A”
warrants for services .

Common stock warrants
exercised

Otlier

1,561,760

720452

160

3,669,282 ‘

21,453,528

11,220,000
2,380,000

720

79,000
394,600

1,982,600

$21,454

1,220
2,380

79
395

1,983

$

912,316

1,222

(1,220)

23,134

181 .

$ 3,386,624

1,559,618

(913,036)

1,142,432
64,740
199,605

1,030,817

$ (524984) $ (5,065,782)

— (3979341

(1,798,438)

656,816 i

$ (562,262)

(3,979,341)
3,670,750

1,142,432
5000
656,816
200,000

1,032,800
160

Balance, December31 2003. § 7411, 585

Net loss for the year
Sales of prefstock C
Warrants i
Beneficial conv of preferred
Preferred discount
amortization
Stock issued from prior
period
Sales
Conversion of pref to
common - (7.674,594)
Common stock issued for . - . . ‘
Services ,
Options issued to directors
Options issued for services
Deposit on Series C
preferred
Stock
Amortization of stock 1ssued
for services
Common stock cancelled
Common stock warrants
exercised
Common stock issued
Evenstar
Acquisition

4,828,418
2,211,300

44

28,230,180

183,000

12,766,500

(100,000)

328,400

300,000
43,000

$28,231

- 183

12,767

$

100

328

300
43

'$ 8,319,286

273,560

7,663,103
479,700

87,786
- 4,019,027

100

178,872

860,700
d3)

S (781,204) $10,843,561)

(8,599,899

(4,097,876)

(480,000)

(814,781) -

712,012

0]

$ 2,245,489
(8,599,899)

5,102,250

87,786
3,204,246
8,849,420

712,012

179,200

861,000
(43)

Other
Balance, December 31,2004 $ 6,776,665

41,751,080 $41,752

300

/521,882,091

$ (1,363,973) $(23,541,337)

The accompanying notes are-an integral part'of these consolidated financial statements
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Balance, December 31, 2004

Net loss for the year

Sales of pre stock C
Warrants

Beneficial conversion of
preferred

Preferred discount
amortization

Stock issued from prior
period sales

Conversion of pref to
common

Premium on series C
conversion

Common stock issued for
services

Options issued to directors

Options issued for services

Deposit on Series C
preferred stock

Amortization of stock issued
for services

Common stock cancelled

Services paid on behalf of
the company

Options exercised for
common stock

Common stock warrants
exercised

Common stock issued for
compensation

Amortization of stock issued
for compensation

Other

Balance, December 31, 2005

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED)

Unamortized
Common Stock Cost of Stock
Contributed . Amount  Contributed Issued Retained
Capital-Pref Shares Amount  Unissued Capital For Service Deficit Total
$ 6,776,665 41,751,080 $41,752 $ 300 $21,882,091 §$(1,363,973) $(23,541,337) § 12,645,461
— - J — —_ — (10,004,388)  (10,004,388)
15,080,409 — — — — — — 2,984,892
, .
— — — j— —_ — (3,246,112) —
(4,721,388) 4;132,230 4,132 -— 4,717,644 —_— — —
— 3,071 —_ 3 7,675 — 7,678) —
— 300,000 300 _ 719,700 (720,000) — —
— — — — 196,000 — — 196,000
— — — — 954,928 — — 954,928
— — — — —_— 773,110 — 773,110
— — — (300) 300 — — —
—_— — — — 1,156,600 — — 1,156,600
— 100,000 100 — 24,900 — — 25,000
— 5,000 5 — 18,245 — — 18,251
$17,135,686 46,291,381 $46,289 $ 3 $29,678,083 §(1,310,862) $(36,799,515) § 8,749,853

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

F-9



‘ SLS INTERNATIONAL INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

v ' 2005 . 2004 2003
Operating act1v1t1es - Lo TR A _ !
Net loss P - $(10,004,388) $(8,599,899) $(3,979,341)
Adjustments to reconc11e net income to cash ﬂows |
~ from operating activities: ‘
Depreciation and amortization 156,765 51,183 24,755
Amortization of cost of stock issued for services 662,768 712,012 856,816
_ Expense of stock options granted for services 2,418,887 3,293,987 1,165,566
Gain on sale of fixed assets 234,158 Q1 l,OOQ) —
Goodwill impairment charge — 1,148,502 —
Gain (loss) on valuation of Class D warrants (1,506,112) — —_
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful ) ;
accounts ' ' (342,619) 6,236~ (112,641)
‘ Inventory i (2,284,649)  (1,318,291) 325,724)
W Deposits — inventory (266,629) (50,000) —
' Deposits — merger o 100,000 —i —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (175,545) - (185,967) 86
Accounts payable 1,123,932 (10,307) (60, 162)
Customer Deposits 207,819 —
Due to shareholders — — (23, 193)
Accrued liabilities (458,582) 604,365 (144,759)
Cash used in operating activities’ (10,134,196)  (4,359,179)  (2,601,597)
Investing activities: '
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets — 11,000 —
Additions of fixed assets (4,889,018) (158,294) (318,724)
* Cash provided by (used in) investing activities (4,889,018) - . (155,294) (318,724)
Financing activities:
Sale of stock, net of expenses 4,534,238 5,291,950 4,768,550
Acquisition of subsidiary — (400,000) —
Deposit received on Series C Preferred, net of expenses - — 8,849,420 —_
Borrowing on notes payable - —_ —_ 21,461
Repayments of notes payable - (28,309) (4,825) (391,144)
Cash provided by ﬁnéncing activities 4,505,929 13,736,545 4,398,867
Increase (decrease) in cash (10,517,285) 9,230,072 1,478,546
Cash, beginning of period 10,712,858 1,482,786 4,240
Cash, end of period $ 195,573 $10,712,858 § 1,482,786
Supplemental cash flow information: ‘ :
" Interest paid $ 5354 §- 157 § 43,345
Income taxes paid (refunded) — — —
Noncash investing activities: . L
Stock issued and options granted for services $ 2,418,887 $3,293987 §$ 2,278,602

Conversion of notes payable

The accompanying n6tés are an integral paft'of-these consolidated financial statements
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SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004, AND 2003

Additions
Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Balances at
of Year . .. .. _Expenses . Deductions . End of Year
Year ended December 31, 2003 . . ‘ o
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 132,396 — $ .. 8739 $ . 45000
Income tax valuation allowance 1,123,700 741,200 — 1,864,900
Year ended December 31, 2004 ,
Allowance for doubtful accounts ' 45,000 — — 45,000
Income tax valuation allowance 1,864,900 1,382,440 ' S 3,247,340
Year ended December 31, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts 45,000 : — —_ 45,000
Income tax valuation allowance 3,247,340 2,700,615 — 5,947,955

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

1. SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operatmns

" Our primary’ busmess is. the de51gn and manufacture of loudspeakers based on our propnetary planar ribbon
driver and unique cabinet desrgns We sell our products pnmarﬂy through dealers and contractors and are
developmg retail channels through var1ous high volume consumer retail channels: v j‘ ‘ '
Inventorles ' ‘

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost (ﬂrst-m ﬁrst—out method) or market Inventory consists of
ﬁmshed goods, raw materials and parts. Included in 1nventory at December 31, 2005 is. $l 474, 481 of finished goods
and $2,718,776 of raw materials. Included in inventory at December 31, 2004 is $497,369 of ﬁmshed goods and
$1,411,219 of raw materials. Also included in Inventory at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $0 and $116,987 of

goods cons1gned to sales representauves and dealers. ;

leed Assets:

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and deprecxated over their estimated useful lives. Deprecratlon is prov1ded
ona stralght-hne basis. The lives used for items within each property classification range from 5 to 39 years.

Malntenance and repalrs are charged to expense as 1neurred

Depreclatxon expense was $156,764, 851,183, and $24, 755 inthe years ended December 31 2005, 2004,
and 2003 ,

Concentration of Credlt Rlsk

The Company s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credlt risk cons1st primarily of
cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Company’s cash equivalents are in major banks and financial
institutions. From time to time, the Company’s cash.deposited with banks exceeded the FDIC insurance limit of
$100,000. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables are limited due to the large number of customers
and their dispersion across geographlc areas, however most are in the same industry; therefore, clistomers may be
similarly affected by changes in‘economic and other conditions within the industry. The Company performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers financial condition and generally does not require collateral As of December 31,
2005 and 2004, approximately 36% and 30%, respectrvely, of the ‘Company’s net accounts recelvable balance was
due from four customers .

Research and Development:

‘ Research and development costs relating to both present and future products are expensed when incurred
and included in operating expenses. Research and development costs were $124,349, $77,065 and $31,435 for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Advertlsmg and Promotmnal Expenses

Advertlsmg and promotxonal expenses are charged to operatlons in the perlod incurred. Advertlsmg and
promotion expenses were $2,860,994, $414,337, and $150,713 for the years ended December 31; 2005, 2004, and
2003. ' i

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accountmg principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates, but management does not believe such differences will
materially affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

)

!.
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Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized when the products are shipped to customers.
Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are carried on a gross basis, with no discounting, less the allowance for doubtful
accounts. No allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized at the time the revenue, which generates the accounts
receivable, is recognized. Management estimates the allowance for doubtful accounts based on existing economic
conditions, the financial conditions of the customers, and the amount and the age of past due accounts. Receivables
are considered past due if full payment is not received by the contractual due date. Past due accounts are generally
written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts only after all collection attempts have been exhausted.

Cash Equivalents:

The Company’s cash equivalents consist principally of any financial instruments with maturities of
generally three months or less and cash investments. The carrying values of these assets approximate their fair
market values.

Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying value of the long-
lived asset to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their
eventual disposition. The Company determined that as of December 31, 2005, there had been no impairment in the
carrying value of long-lived assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are recorded at fair value and not amortized, but are reviewed
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, as required by SFAS No. 142. As
of December 31, 2005 and 2004 the Company had no goodwill or other intangible assets. See Note 8, Acquisitions,
for goodwill impairment expense during 2004. There was no goodwill impairment expense recorded during 2005.

Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. Fair values are
based on quoted market prices and assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows
and assumed discount rates reflecting varying degrees of perceived risk. Based upon borrowing rates currently
available to the Company with similar terms, the carrying value of notes payable and long-term debt approximates
fair value. ‘

Net Loss Per Share:

The Company computes loss per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. This
standard requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share on the face of the income statement for all
entities with complex capital structures and requires a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the diluted
loss per share computation.

The Company’s potentially issuable shares of common stock pursuant to outstanding stock options and
convertible preferred stock are excluded from the Company’s diluted computation, as their effect would be anti-
dilutive.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards:

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 517 (the
Interpretation). The Interpretation requires the consolidation of variable interest entities in which an enterprise
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Contmued)

absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected resrdual returns, or
both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Currently, entities are generally
consolidated by an enterprise that has a controlhng financial interest through ownership of a majority voting interest
in the entity. The Interpretation was originally immediately effective for variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003, and effective in the fourth quarter of the Company’s fiscal 2003 for those creatéd prior to
February 1,2003. However, in October. 2003; the FASB deferred the effective date for those variable interest entities
created prior to February 1, 2003, until the Company’s first quarter of fiscal 2004. The ‘Company has completed the
process of gvaluating the Interpretatron and: beheves its adoption will nothavea matenal impact on its ﬁnancral
position or results.of'operations. : SRR C :

In December 2004, the Fmancral Accountmg Standards Board (FASB) 1ssued SFAS No 123(R), Share-
Based Payment, which revised SFAS No. 123 and superseded APB Opinion No. 25, Accountmg for Stock Issued to
Employees. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that companies recognize compensation €xpense associated with grants of
stock options and other equity instruments to employees in the financial statements. Compensatlon cost will be
measured based on the fair value of the instrument on the grant date and will be recognized over the vesting period.
This pronouncement applies to‘all grants after the effective date and to the unvested portion of stock options
outstanding as of the effective date. The Company anticipates that the effect of adopting this statement will not have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Stock-Based Compensation:

[N L - : Lol

'"The Company accounts for its stock and options issued for services by non- employees based on the market
value of the stock at the date of the agreement and the market value of the options a§ determmed by the Black-
Scholes pricing model. The cost is amortized to expense over the life of the agreement to prov1de services. The
Company accounts for its stock option plan in accordance with the prov1s1ons of SFAS: No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation”. SFAS No. 123 permits entities to recognize as expense over the vestmg period the fair
value of all stock-based awards on the date of the grant. Alternatively, SFAS No. 123 also allows enities to apply
the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (*APB”) Opinion-No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to -
Employees”, and related interpretations and provides pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share
disclosures for employee stock option grants as if the fair-value-based method defined i SFAS'No. 123 had been
applied. During 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, effective-as of
the beginning of the year. There had been no previous granting of options to employees and therefore this adoption
had no effect on previous financial statements. See Note 14 for details of employee stock options issued during the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. SE . W T |
‘ |
Income Taxes AL A S ‘ L

S R e ;

: Amounts provided: for ncome tax: expense are based ¢ on income reported for financial statement purposes
and do not necessarily represent amounts currently payable under tax laws Deferred taxes which arise principally
from temporary differences between the period in which certain income and expense items are recognized for
financial reporting purposes and the period in which they affect taxable income, are included in the amounts
provided for income taxes. Under this method, the computation of deferred tax assets and liabilities give recognition
to the enacted tax rates in effect in the year the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are estabhshed when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts that the Company expects to
reahze ;

A i ; e )
Reclassifications I

3

Certain amounts in the ﬁnancral statements for‘the pnor penod have been reclassrﬁed to conform to the
current period’s presentation. - ! ' :
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2. GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. As shown in the financial
statements during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the company incurred losses of $10,004,388,
$8,599,899, and $3,979,341 respectively. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classifications of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as
a going concern. It is management’s plan to finance its operations for the foreseeable future primarily with proceeds
from capital contributed by shareholders and to explore other financing options in the investment community. At
December 31, 2005 no formal agreements had been entered into. There can be no assurance that these sources will
provide sufficient cash inflows to enable the Company to achieve its operational objectives.

3. LONG TERM DEBT AND NOTES PAYABLE

Long term debt and notes payable consists of the following at December 31, 2005 and 2004:

December 31,

2005 2004
Notes payable to an individual, interest rate of 7% uncollateralized, principal due
September of 2005 ' $ — $25000
Equipment note, payments in monthly installments of $407 beginning Oct. 2003,
ending Sept. 2008. Interest at 5.16% 11,743 15,052
Less current portion 4376 29,101
Long-term portion . $ 7,367 $10,951

The aggregate principal amounts due in the future are as follows: $4,376 in 2006, $4,607 in 2007, and
$2,760 in 2008.

The note payable to an individual for $25,000 was paid in full in June of 2005,

Interest expense accrued on long-term debt was $5,354 and $1,907 in the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004.

4, COMMITMENTS

Rent expense for operating leases was approximately $71,400, $98,943 and $62,150 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, This lease had expired by December 31, 2003, so there are no future lease
commitments under this lease. '

In February 2006, the building that serves as our principal location was sold to a third party and leased back
to the company in a ten - year lease. The term of the lease runs from February 2006 through February 2016.

Future minimum lease payments under this new lease are as follows:

2006 $ 412,500
2007 $ 450,000
2008 $ 450,000
2009 $ 450,000
2010 and thereafter $3,150,000

$4,912,500
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5. INCOME TAXES

. The Company does not have an income tax provision in 2005 2004 and 2003. The Company has loss
carryforwards of approximately $17,493,985 expiring from. 2011 to 2019.

Deferred tax is comprised of the followmg

2005 2004 2003
Non-current asset; : ’ L
Net operating loss _ | $ 5,947,955 §3, 247 340§ 1 ,864,900
Valuation allowance : : (5.947,955) (3, 247 ,340)  (1,864,900)
Total deferred tax, net ' ‘ $ — 3 _— 3 —

A percent reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the statutory federal rate is as follows:

- 2005 2004 2003

Statutory federal income tax rate . (34.0%) : (34.0%) (34.0%)
Non deductible expense T e : 16.6%. | 153% .17.0%
Change in valuation allowance . 17.4%  18.7% 17.0%

Effective tax rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

6.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2005, SLS entered into a three year consulting agreement with a consultant. SLS pays the consultant
$10,000 per month under this agreement for services provided to the company. Upon signing the agreement, the
consultant had no relationship w1th the company or any of its officers, but has since become the spouse of the
Presxdent Steve Lamar. ‘
J

There was an amount due from a shareholder of $511 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. Amounts owed
by or to shareholders to the Company are charged agamst or credited to interest. As of December 31, 2005 the
amount due from shareholder was $0. .

" In December of 2004, the Company entered into a real estate lease with a company 50% owned by the
President of the Company. The lease contained an option to purchase the building for $3,500,000. In February of
2005, the Company exercised the option and purchased the bu11dmg The Company pald rent of $18,750 for
January of 2005 before the purchase occurred. ‘

7. MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

|
)

In 2005,the Company received approximately.33% of its revenue from five customers wnth the largest
customer accounting for 17% of total revenue. The Company. purchased approx1rnately 51% of the cost of sales
from five vendors with the largest vendor accounting for 21% of total cost of sales.

In 2004, the Company received approximatety 22% of its revenue from five customerjé with the largest
- customer accounting for 6% of total revenue. The Company purchased approximately 49% of the cost of sales from
five vendors with the largest vendor accounting for 15% of total cost of sales.

' In 2003, the Company received approximately 32% of its revenue from five customefs with the largest
customer accounting for 16% of total revenue. The Company purchased approximately 87% of the cost of sales
from five vendors with the largest two vendors accounting for 55% of total cost of sales.




SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ (Continued)

8. ACQUISITIONS

In February of 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with the owners of SA Sound B.V. and SA
Sound USA, Inc. giving the Company an option to acquire said companies at any time prior to February 27, 2004 for
a purchase price of 370,000 euros, approximately $467,000. The Company paid 50,000 euros, approximately
$63,000 for this option. The option agreement entitled the Company to a refund of the option price if the due
diligence performed by the Company disclosed any material adverse facts about said companies. After completion
of the due diligence, the Company determined not to exercise the option to purchase and has asserted its right to a
refund of the option price. The sellers are challenging the return of the option price. $109,165 has been recorded as
acquisitions expense in the year ended December 31, 2004 in relation to the option price and related legal fees for
this acquisition attempt. :

In March of 2004, the Company completed a merger with Evenstar, Inc. into a newly formed, wholly
owned subsidiary. In exchange for said merger, the Company paid $300,000 in cash and issued 300,000 shares of
common stock to the seller. Based on market value of the common stock on the date of closing and the cash paid,
the total acquisition price was $1,161,000. Simultaneously with the merger, the Company hired the seller as director
of its electronics division. Evenstar, Inc had virtually no assets other than patents, valued at $12,498, and has not
shown any revenue for the two years previous to the merger. The excess of the purchase price over the cost of the
patents was recorded as goodwill in the first quarter of 2004. Simultaneously, the Company recorded a charge for
impairment of goodwill of the same amount. Impairment charges relating to this merger were $1,148,502 for the
year ended December 31, 2004.

In April of 2004, the Company entered into a strategic alliance agreement with Bohlender-Graebener
Corporation (BG). The Company paid BG $100,000 on April 2, 2004 for this agreement. This amount is recorded on
the December 31, 2004 financial statements as deposits - merger. The agreement term was for one year and could be’
extended for any length of time after the first year by mutual agreement between BG and the Company. During the
term of the agreement BG was required to work with the Company, diligently and in good faith, to consummate a
merger. During the first six months of the agreement, BG was not permitted to solicit any offer to purchase BG, and
was not permitted to respond to any unsolicited offer. In addition to the above, BG granted the Company exclusive
sales and marketing rights to certain BG products and the Company committed to purchase certain minimum
quantities of various BG products at agreed-upon prices. In the event no agreement to merge the companies on
mutually acceptable terms could be reached before termination of the agreement, BG was entitled to keep the
$100,000 cash payment as consideration for its performance under the agreement. In October of 2004, the Company
agreed to pay BG an additional $100,000 as prepayment of future inventory purchases and BG agreed to extend
certain terms of the agreement by six months. As of December 31, 2005, no agreement to merge the companies had
been reached and the $100,000 was recorded as acquisition expense in the year ended December 31, 2005.

9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Year ended December 31, 2003:

In 2003, 1,966,000 Class A warrants were exercised for 1,966,000 shares of common stock for a total of
$983,000. Also in 2003, 394,600 Class A warrants were exercised for 394,600 shares of common stock for services
rendered. o .

In 2003, 16,600 Class B warrants were exercised for 16,600 Shares of common stock for a total of $49,800.
In 2003, 260,000 options were exercised for 260,000 shares of common stock for a total of $65,000.

In 2003, the Company sold 1,468,300 shares 'cif preferred stock, series A, for $3,670,750. The preferred
stock offering closed on July 31, 2003. This preferred stock contained a beneficial conversion feature. The feature
allows the holder to convert the preferred to 10 shares of common stock one year after buying the shares. A discount
on preferred shares of $3,451,720 relating to the beneficial conversion feature was recorded which was amortized
over a one-year period beginning with the date the shareholders purchased their shares

During 2003, 238,000 shares of preferred stock, series A, were converted to 2,380,000 shares of common
stock.
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In February 2003, an agreement was signed with Tom Puccio for consulting services to be performed
February 15, 2003 to August 25, 2003. As compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue
300,000 shares of common stock. Using the market value on the date the agreement was signed, the shares were
valued at $93,000 and recorded as a debit in the equrty sectron of the balance sheet as unamortized cost of stock
issued for services. The cost was amortized over the six- month period of the agreement. Consultmg expense relatmg
to this agreement was $93,000 for the year ended December 31 2003 ; i

In July 2003, the Company entered into an endorsement agreement Wrth the recordrng artist Sting through
Steerpike Ltd. The agréement grants 1,100,000 options in exchange for future endoisements of SL'S products. Each
option is convertible into one share of common stock at a striké price of $0.25 and is exercisable for a period of five
years. Expense associated with the options were recorded over the two-year period of the agreement beginning
July 31, 2003 and ended July 31, 2005 Expense was recorded at fair market value, using the Black-Scholes pricing
model, on an accelerated method, thereby recording a larger portron of the costs in the earlier months of the two-
year period. Consultmg expense relating to this agreement was $110,601, '$1,027,985 and $1,142, 432 for the years
ended December 31 2005, 2004 and 2003. As of December 31 ,2005, all 1 100 000 options have been eamed and
expensed

' i i

I October 2003, ari agreement was signed with Zane Selh’s for consulting services to be performed
October 28, 2003 to October 28, 2005..As compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue 3,226
shares of common stock.‘Usingithe miarket value on the date the agreement was signed, the shares were valued at
$5,162 and recorded as a debit in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized"‘cost of stock issued for
services. The cost was amortized over the two-year period of the agreement. Consulting expense relatrng to this
agreement was $2,129, $2,580 and $453 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. As of
December 31 2005 all amomzatlon for consultrng semces relatrng to thrs agreement have been expensed

“n November 2003, an agreement was signed wrth George Iordanou for consultmg servrces to be performed
November 6, 2003 to November 6, 2005 - As compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue .
3,226 shares of common stock. Using the market value on the date the agreement was signed, the shares were valued
at $4,774 and recorded as a debit'in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost of stock issued fors
services. The cost was amortized over the two-year period of the agreement. Consulting'expense relatrng to-this
agreement was $2027; $2,388 and $360 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004.and 2003. As.of
December 31 2005 all amortrzatron for consulting services’ relatrng to this agreement have been expensed

In November 2003 an agreement was signed wrth erlram F 1schbach for consultrng servrces to be
performed November.10, 2003 to-November 10, 2006. As compensation for consulting services the Company
agreed.to issue 400,000 shares of,common stock. Using the market value on the date the agreement was signed; the
_shares were valued at $780,000 and recorded as a debit in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost
of stock issued for services. The cost will be amortized over the three-year period of theagreement. Consulting
expense relating to this agreement was $260,000, $260,000 and $36,329 for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003. On December 31, 2005 there was $223,671 remaining in unamortized stock issued for services for
this agreement. The agreement also calls for the issuance of.options, not to exceed an aggregate of 800,000, to
Mr. Fischbach on January 1 of each yéar based on the  previous year’s perfozmance lévels. No options were issued
on January 1, 2004 or 2005 under this agreement The agreement also calls for additional compensatlon to
Mr. Fischbach in the form of a cash fee of 2% of the dollar amount of value provided in a merger, acquisition, or
other transaction resulting drrectly from Mr Fischbach’s services. As of December 31, 2005 Mr. F ischbach had -
earned no cash fee ‘

In November 2003, an agreement was srgned w1th Edward Decker for consultrng servrces to be performed
November 20, 2003 to November 20,.2005. As compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue
7,000 shares of common stock. Usrng the market value on the date the agreement was’signed, the shares were valued
at'$15,050 and recorded asa deblt in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost of stock issued for
services. The cost was amortized' ‘over the two-year period of the agreemént: Consultmg expense relating to this
agreement was $6,681, $7,524 and $845 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. As of ‘
December 31, 2005 all amortrzatron for consulting Services relatmg to this agreement have been expensed
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In November 2003, an agreement was signed with Christopher Obssuth for consulting services to be
performed November 20, 2003 to November 20, 2005. As compensation for consulting services the Company
agreed to issue 7,000 shares of common stock. Using the market value on the date the agreement was signed, the
shares were valued at $15,050 and recorded as a debit in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost
of stock issued for services. The cost was amortized over the two-year period of the agreement. Consulting expense
relating to this agreement was $6,681, $7,524 and $845 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. As
Of December 31, 2005 all amortization for consulting services relating to this agreement have been expensed.

Year ended December 31, 2004;

In 2004, 322,400 Class A warrants were exercised for 322,400 shares of common stock for a total of
$161,200. All of the remaining Class A warrants expired on August 5, 2004.

In 2004, 6,000 Class B warrants were exercised for 6,000 shares of common stock for a total of $18,000.
All of the remaining Class B warrants expired on August 5, 2004,

In 2004, no options were exercised for shares of common stock.

In 2004, 1,200,600 shares of preferred stock, series A, were converted to 12,006,000 shares of common
stock.

In 2004, 100,000 shares of common stock were returned to the Company and cancelled as part of a lawsuit
settlement. \

In 2004, 300,000 shares of common stock were issued for the merger with Evenstar, Inc. See Note 8.

In 2004, the Company commenced an offering of Series B preferred stock and sold 272,100 shares of
preferred stock, series B, for $5,102,250, net of expenses. This preferred stock contains a beneficial conversion
feature. The feature allows the holder to convert the preferred to 10 shares of common stock six months after buying
the shares. Attached to each preferred share is ten Class C warrants. Each Class C warrant has a term of three years
and provides the right to purchase one share of our common stock at $7.00 per share. If the average closing market
price for our common stock is equal to or greater than $10.50 for a period of 30 days, then such warrants are capable
of being repurchased with a 30-day notice, at a price of $.001 per warrant. A discount on preferred shares of
$2,211,300 relating to the beneficial conversion feature was recorded and was amortized over the six-month period
beginning with the date the shareholders purchased their shares. As of December 31, 2004, $2,211,300 has been
amortized to retained earnings and the unamortized discount on preferred shares was $0.

In 2004, 76,050 shares of preferred stock, series B, were converted to 760,500 shares of common stock.

In December 2004, an agreement was signed with W. Curtis Hargis Co. (Hargis) for consulting services.
As compensation for consulting services we agreed to issue 100,000 options upon reaching an agreement with a
retailer introduced to us by Hargis. This occurred on March 21, 2005. We also agreed to issue Hargis an option to
purchase one share of common stock for every $100 in sales from the retailer provided that Hargis shall not be
entitled to receive in excess of 500,000 options. The options have a term of three years and have a strike price equal
to the average price of the Company’s common stock for the five trading days immediately prior to the day the
options are earned. As of December 31, 2005, Hargis had earned 101,529 options to purchase common stock. Using
the Black-Scholes pricing method, the options were valued at $62,886 and recorded as consulting expense in the
year ended December 31, 2005. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest rate of
3.93%; strike price of $2.11; market price of $2.30; volatility rate of 25.87%; and a yield rate of 0.00%. The
agreement also calls for additional compensation to Hargis in the form of a cash fee of 2% of the net sales realized
from the retailer. As of December 31, 2005, Hargis had earned $1,735 based on the value provided to us in the year
ended December 31, 2005.

In February of 2004, an agreement was signed with Ryan Schinman for consulting services to be performed
indefinitely. As compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue 50,000 options on the date of
signing and 10,000 options per month thereafter. The options have a term of ten years and a strike price equal to the
market price on their grant date. The strike price for the options granted in 2004 ranged from $1.45 to $3.10. Using
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the Black-Scholes pricing model, the options were valued at $215,600 and recorded as consulting'expense for the
year ended December 31,2004. In the year ended December 31, 2005, 120,000 options yvere granted to Ryan
Schinmann for consulting services. The options have a strike price equal to market price on their grant date, ranging
from $1.99 to $2.51. Using the Black-Scholes pricing model, the options were valued at $113,516.and recorded as
consulting expense. Factors used:in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest rates of 3.93% to
4.50%; strike prices of$l 99 to $2 51; market prices of $1. 99 to $2 51; Volat1lrty rate of21 13% to 25.87%; and a
yield rate of 0.00%.

In June 2004, the Company entered into an endorsement / consulting agreement with- the recording artist
Quincy Jones through Global Drumz, Inc. The Company made a cash payment of $250,000 to Global Drumz, Inc.
on the date of the agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company granted options to purchase 1,000,000 shares
of its common stock in exchange for future endorsements of its products and various other consultmg services. The
option has a strike price of $2.00,and is exercisable for a period of five years. The Company also’ 1ssued 1,000,000
Class C warrants, with a five- year term, for 1,000,000 additional shares of common stock at an exercise. price of
$7.00 per share. In the event that the closing price of its common stock does not exceed $7.00 per share for a period
of five consecutive business days during the period commencing on June 2, 2004 and ending June 2, 2009, the
Company shall pay additional compensation of $250,000. Expense associated with the options was recorded over
the six-month vesting period of the agreement. The options and warrants automatically'vest as t0,50% of the stock
covered thereby upon the effectiVe date of the agreement and as to one-sixth of the remaining stock covered thereby
monthly thereafter. Expense was recorded at fair value, using the Black-Scholes prrcmg model, on an accelerated
method, thereby recordmg a larger portion of the costs in the earlier months of the six-month period. Factors used in
the Black Scholes pricing model included: risk free interest rate of 3.30% to 3.71%; strike price of $2.00 for the
options and $7.00 for the warrants; market price of 1.45 to 2.95; volatility rate of 29.28% to 32.36%; and a yield rate
0f 0.00%. The consulting expense relating to this agreement of $1,658,888 (3250, OOO cash, $1, 408 888 non cash)
was all recorded dunng the year ‘ended December 31, 2004

In 2004, no Class C warrants were exercised. As of December 31, 2004 3, 846 000 Class C warrants were
outstanding. :

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Iz

In February of 2005, an agreement was signed with 3CD Consultmg, LLC for consultmo services to be
performed November 18, 2004 to November 17, 2007. As compensation for consultmg services the Company
agreed-to issue 1,000,000 options for shares of common stock. The options have a term of 3 years and a strike price
of $2.00. Using the Black-Scholes pricing model, the options were valued at $814,781 and recordéd as a debit in the
equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost of stock issued for services. Factors used.in the Black
Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest rate 3.08%; strike price of $2.00; market price of $2.45; volatrlrty
rate 0f29.73%,; and a yield rate of 0.00%. The expense is amortized over the three-year period of the agreement.
Consulting expense relating to this agreement was $271,592 and $31,996 for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004. On December 31, 2005, there was $511,193 remammg in unamortrzed cost of stock 1ssued for services for
this agreement . BN : ; P :

In January of 20085, an agreement was signed wrth New AV Ventures, LLC (AV) for consultmg services to
be performed January 31, 2005 to January 31, 2010. As compensation for consulting services. the Company issued
300,000 shares of common stock. Using the market value on the date the agreement was signed,ithe shares were
valued at $720,000 and recorded as a debit in the equity section of the balance sheet as unamortized cost of stock
issued for services. The cost will be amortized over the ﬁve-year period of the agreement Consulting expense
relating to this agreement was $144,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. On December 31, 2005 there was
$576,000 remaining in unamort1zed stock issued for services for this agreement. The Company also agreed to give
AV a percentage of future sales'to certain vendors and one, option to purchase one share of common stock for each
$100 of sales to vendors generated by AV; provided that AV shall not be entitled to receive in excess of 700,000
options. The options will have a term of five years and have a strike price equal to the average price of the
Company’s common stock for the five trading days immediately prior to January 1 of the followrng year. As of
December 31, 2005 AV, has earned no cash fee or optlons under this agreement - » :

o
S t. . S v ]
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In January of 2005, the Company completed a private placement of 15,000 shares of its Series C Preferred
stock for an aggregate purchase price of $15,000,000. The proceeds were $13,340,408, net of expenses. Expenses
associated with the offering are legal costs of $132,558 and expenses related to a finder’s fee. The finder was
compensated $900,000 plus 600,000 warrants, which were valued at $627,034 using the Black-Scholes pricing
model and charged as an expense in the first quarter of 2005. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model
included: risk-free interest rate of 3.64%: strike price of $2.50; market price of $2.79; volatility rate of 29.73%; and
a yield rate of 0.00%.

The Series C Preferred Stock contains a beneficial conversion feature. The feature allows the holder to
convert each share of preferred to 400 shares of common stock and accrues a 6% premium to the stated face value of
the shares of preferred stock, which would be convertible into additional shares of common stock. A discount on
preferred shares of $3,246,112 relating to the beneficial conversion feature was recorded. As of December 31, 2005,
the full discount had been amortized to retained earnings.

The 6% premium accrues to the face value of the preferred stock and compounds quarterly. As of
December 31, 2005, the face value of the 14,450 outstanding shares are $15,326,826, of which $876,826 is
premium. The face value of the preferred stock is convertible into common stock at $2.50 per share. As a result, on
December 31, 2005, the 14,450 outstanding shares of preferred stock were convertible into 6,130,730 shares of
common stock.

Attached to each Series C Preferred share are 400 Class D warrants. Each Class D warrant has a term of
five years and provides the right to purchase one share of our common stock at $6.00 per share, subject to certain
adjustments. The Company may redeem the warrants and may require the holders to convert the preferred stock to
common stock if certain conditions are met. Using the Black-Scholes model for pricing, the Class D warrants were
valued at $1,506,112. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest rate of 3.64%;
strike price of $6.00; market price of $2.79; volatility rate of 29.73%; and a yield rate of 0.00%.

The provisions of the agreement pertaining to the Class D warrants provide for penalties if we fail to keep
the registration statement effect for a preset time period. Since this clause calls for a settlement alternative that
would be avoided by the company under other settlement alternatives, we are required by EITF 00-19 to record a
liability for the market value of the Class D warrants. The initial amount of this liability is the fair market value as
determined by the Black-Scholes pricing model amounting to $1,506,112. Subsequent changes in the Black-Scholes
market value are to be reported in our carnings statement. As of December 31, 2005, the Black-Scholes pricing
model valued the warrants at $0. Consequently the decrease in the original liability of $1,506,112 to the
December 31, 2005 value of $0 results in recognition of a gain of $1,506,112.

In the year ended December 31, 2005, 284,873 shares of preferred stock, series A, were converted to
2,848,730 shares of common stock. There are 66,000 shares of series A preferred stock outstanding as of
December 31, 2005.

In the year ended December 31, 2005, 106,350 shares of preferred stock, series B, were converted to
1,063,500 shares of common stock. There are 89,700 shares of series B preferred stock outstanding as of
December 31, 2005.

In the year ended December 31, 2003, 550 shares of preferred stock, series C, were converted into 220,000
shares of common stock. The premium on these converted shares was $7,678 and is recorded in these financial
statements as a stock dividend. The premium on these shares converted at $2.50 per share into an additional 3,071
shares of common stock. These shares were not issued as of December 31, 2005 are therefore shown in these
financial statements as stock not issued but owed.

In June of 2005, an agreement was signed with JMBP, Inc. and Mark Burnett for consulting services. As
compensation for consulting services the Company agreed to issue 1,000,000 options for shares of common stock
and 1,000,000 warrants for shares of common stock. The options have a term of five years and a strike price of
$2.05. The warrants have a term of five years and a strike price of $6.50. 400,000 options and 400,000 warrants
vested on the date the agreement was signed. The remaining options and warrants vest upon various events as set
forth in the agreement. As of December 31, 2005, 100,000 additional warrants and option were vested. Using the
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Black-Scholes pricing model, these options and warrants were valued at $283,740 and recorded as consulting
expense for-the year ended December 31, 2005. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free
interest rate of 3.89%; strike price of $1.91 to $2.05 for the options and $6.50-for the warrants; market price of
$2.05; volatility rate of 21.92% to 22.13%; and a yield rate of 0.00%. Expenses to be recorded in future quarters are
unknown at this time because the value of the vesting optrons and warrants wrlLbe partly based on the market price
on the date the vesting events take place. - ; ‘ . q ,

In June of 2005, we entered into employment agreements with Michael Maples, Steven Lamar, and John
Gott. Each agreement has a term-of three years. In the agreements we agreed to pay an aggregate of $150,000 in
signing bonuses, agreed to issue-an aggregate of 1,125,000 shares of common stock; and agreed to issue an.
aggregate of 1,250,000 options. The signing bonuses were paid and capitalized as a prepaid expense, which wiil be
amortized over the three- -year term of each agreement. In the year ended December 31,2005, $26,127 was recorded
in compensation expense in relation to the prepaid signing bonuses. There is $123,873 remaining in prepaid expense
as of December 31, 2005. The 1,125,000 shares of common stock were to be issued in January 2006, but the officers
have elected to forgo their rights'to receive the stock. Because the officers have given up the rights to the stock and
the stock will not be issued; no expense has been recorded on this segment of the employment agreéement in the year
ended December 31,2005 and there wiil be no expense in the future in regards to this stock. The;1;250,000 options
will be earned evenly over the three—year agreement.-Each option is convertible into one -sharé of common stock at a
strike price of $2.50 and is exercisable for a period of ten years. Expense associated with the options will be
recorded, over the three-year period of the employment agreements at fair market value, using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. Compensation €xpense relatmg to optlons earned for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005
was $104,966. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free mterest rate of $3.75 - 4.09%;
strike price of $2. 50 market price of $1.99 - '$2.15; volatility rate of 22.13% - 25.87%; and a yield rate of 0.00%. As
of December 31, 2005, 223,174:0f the 1 250 000 options have Beeri earned and expensed Expenses to be recorded
in future quarters aré unknown at this tlme because the value of the eamed optlons wrll be partly based on the
month-end market price. !

' In 2005 the company ’s CEO transferred 7(3 000 shares of hrs'personal common stock tg various ihdividuals
for consulting services. For accounting and tax purposes, these transfers are deemed to have been imade by the |
company. The shares were valued using t the ‘market price at the date the stock was transferred The stock price
ranged from $2. 15- $2.40. The shares weré valued at $161,250 and recorded as consultmg expense for the year
ended December 31 2005. year ended December 31, 2005 o o ;

In 2005 the company’s CEO granted 500,000 options to a consultant from his own personal stock. For
accounting and tax purposes, these transfer’s are deemed o have been made by the Company. Usmg the Black
Scholes pricing model the options were valued at $995,350. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model
included: risk free interest rate of $3.19; strike price of $05; market prrce of $2.04; volatility rate of 22.13%; and a .
yield rate of 0.00%. The optlons were recorded as consulting expense for yeaf ended December 31, 2005.

In the year ended December 31, 2005, 930, 000 options were granted to drrectors of the Company. The
options have a strike price of $2.50. Using the Black- Scholes pricing model, the optrons were valued at $686,868
and recorded as compensation expense. Factors used in the Black-Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest
rates of 3.71% to 4.06%; strike prices of $2.27 to $2.50; market prices of $2.27 to $2.38; volatility rate of 22. 13%;
and a yield rate of 0.00%. In the second quarter of 2005, 730, 000 options issued in the first quarter automatically
expired upon resrgnatron of two directors. Therefore, compensation expense for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 was
reduced by $490,868 in credits from the explratron of such options for.a net expense of $196, 000 for the year ended
December 31, 2005, ; . S r : r

In 20035, no Class D warrants were exercrsed As of December 31, 2005 there were 6, 000 000 Class D
warrants outstanding. : ;

In 2005, no Class C warrants were exercrsed As of Décember 31, 2005, there were 3 846 000 Class C

warrants outstandmg ‘
o

1 Asof December 31, 2005 all Class A and B warrants were exprred
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10. UNAMORTIZED COST OF STOCK AND OPTIONS ISSUED FOR SERVICES

As detailed in Note 9, during the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2005, the Company issued
common stock and options as part of consulting agreements that were to be expensed over various time periods. The
value of stock issued and options granted totaled $720,000, $913,036 and $1,599,213 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004,and 2003, respectively. This cost is recorded as a debit in the equity section of the balance
sheet as unamortized cost of stock issued for services. The balance is amortized into consulting expense over the
lives of the various consulting agreements. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 $773,110,
$712,012 and $656,816 was amortized into consulting expense. Unamortized cost of stock issued for services was
1,310,864 as of December 31, 2005 and $1,363,974 as of December 31, 2004.

11. CONSULTING AND INVESTOR RELATIONS SERVICES

Consulting and investor relation services expense was $4,352,716, $4,982,014 and $3,104,153 for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.,

. Consulting expenses relating to stock issued for consulting agreements was $662,768, $712,012, and
$656,816 (See Note 10) in the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 and relating to options issued for
consulting agreements was $1,837,685, $3,467,254, and $1,142,432 (See Note 9)for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004, and 2003. :

Various individuals and corporations performed consulting services and investor relation services for the
Company during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 and were paid cash in the amounts of
$1,852,263, $802,748, and $1,304,905.

12. STOCK OPTIONS

In 2003, the Company issued 1,100,000 options for common stock as part of consulting agreements as
detailed in Note 9 and 145,000 employee options as detailed in Note 13. In 2004, the Company issued 2,285,000
options for common stock as part of consulting agreements as detailed in Note 9 and 75,000 employee options as
detailed in Note 13. In 2005, the Company issued 1,221,529 options for common stock as part of consulting
agreements as detailed in note 9 and 1,450,000 employee options as detailed in Note 13.

The following table summarizes the options granted and assumptions used in determining their value, using
the Black-Scholes pricing model:

2003 2004 2005
Dividend Yield 0% 0% 0%
Weighted Average Expected Stock Volatility 142.94%46.60% 21.13%-32.86% 22.13%-25.87%
Weighted Average Risk Free Interest Rate 2.85%-3.46% 3.30%—-4.50% 3.73%—4.09%
Expected Option Lives 5 to 10 years 3 to 5 years 3 to 10 years
Value of Options Granted $1,142,432 $3,467,254* $2,308,545**

*  Only options earned in 2004 are valued here. Options to be earned in 2005 have not been valued as they will be
valued on the date they are earned. See Note .

**  Only options earned in 2005 are valued here. Total value includes some options issued in 2005 that were not
valued until the date they were earned. Options to be earned in 2006 have not been valued as they will be valued
on the date they are earned. See Note 9.
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Weighted - Weighted ‘ Weighted

Average .. Average v Average
: . ~Exercise : Exercise ) Exercise

Options ) : . 2003 _ Price 2004 Price 12008 Price
Outstanding at begmmng of year : ‘ 500,000 §. 030 1,435,000 $. 027 3,$45,000 $ 1.26
Granted o 1,245,000 . 0.25 2,360,000 ‘ 2.04 2,671,529 2.28
Exercised r ‘ 260,000 0.25 — e 105,000 .25
Expired . ' l O _ L S __
Outstanding at end of year ‘ 1,485,000 $ 027 3,845000 $ 126 6411,529 $ 1.70

13. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

Durmg the year ended December 31, 2003 the Company adopted the fair value recognmon provisions of
FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, effective as of the begmnmg of the year.
There had been no previous g'ran‘ts of options to employees and therefore this adoption‘has no effect on financial
statements prior to 2003. There were no employee stock optxons in any year prior to 2003 E

The board of dlrectors approved 145,000 optlons for employees and directors in the year ended
December 31, 2003. The options vested immediately. 10,000 options were approved for each of the three board
members for their roles as directors of the company 115,000 options were approved: for employees of the Company
for services rendered. Using the Black-Scholes pricing model, in accordance with the fair value recogmtlon
provision of FASB Statement No.123, the options were valued at $23,134 and recorded as compensation expense in
the year ended December 31, 2003. - ! l

The following table summarizes the OpthﬂS granted in 2003 and assumptlons used in determmmg their
value, using the’ Black Scholes prxcmg model:. ‘

P

Dividend Yield- - ‘ : S i ‘, 0%

Weighted Average Expected Stock Volatility . . . ; 52.5%
Weighted Average Risk Free Interest Rate R . : 4.04%
Expected Option Lives - . » . ‘ * ‘ ' L : 10 years
Value of Options Granted . o g - $23,134
Weighted
‘ Average
‘ . ‘ : ; Exercise

Options : C o : . 2003 Price

Outstandmg at begmnmg of year T : — R

Granted AR . : 145,000 § .25
Exercised ‘ ‘ ‘ — —
. Expired = o _ — —
Outstandmg at end of year ‘ " o : . o ‘145000 $ 0.25

. The board of dlrectors approved 75,0000 optlons for employees and directors, in the year ended
December 31, 2004. The: optlons vested immediately. 25,000 options were approved for each of three board .
members for their roles as directors of the company. Using the Black- Scholes pricing model, in accordance with the
fair value recognition provision of FASB Statement No. 123, the options were valued at $57,359 and recorded as
“compensation expense in the year ended December 31, 2004.
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The following table summarizes the options granted in 2004 and assumptions used in determining their
value, using the Black-Scholes pricing model:

Dividend Yield , 0%
Weighted Average Expected Stock Volatility _ : 25.48%
Weighted Average Risk Free Interest Rate _ L 3.93%
Expected Option Lives 10 years
Value of Options Granted _ $57,359
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Options ‘ . 2004 Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 145,000 $ 0.25
Granted : . 75000 §$ 2.21
Exercised \ ~ — —
Expired : T — —
Outstanding at end of year ' : 220,000 § 092

The board of directors approved 1,450,000 options for employees and directors in the year ended
December 31, 2005.

The following table summarizes the options granted in 2005 and assumptions used in determining their
value, using the Black-Scholes pricing model:

Dividend Yield 0%
Weighted Average Expected Stock Volatility 22.13-25.87%
Weighted Average Risk Free Interest Rate -~ ‘ 3.73-4.09%
Expected Option Lives 10 years
Value of Options Granted _ $300,966*

*  Only options earned in 2005 are valued here. Options to be earmed in 2006 and beyond have not been valued as
they will be valued on the date they are earned. '

Weighted
Average
. } Exercise

Options 2005 Price
Outstanding at beginning of year - 220,000 $ 0.92
Granted 1,450,000 $ 2.47
Exercised — —
Expired ) — —
Outstanding at end of year 1,670,000 § 2.27

14. TEMPORARY EQUITY - RESCISSION OFFERS

Holders who exercised warrants during the period from May 1, 2002 through May 10, 2004 may be entitled
to demand a rescission of such exercises. During such period, the registration statement that the Company filed with
the US Securities and Exchange Commission to register the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants
may not have been “current” because it had not been amended to include the Company s most recent audited
financial statements. The Company intended to, but ultimately did not, make a rescission offer in 2005 to all warrant
holders who exercised warrants during the period from May 1, 2002 through May 10, 2004, The rescission offer
would require the Company to repurchase shares of common stock issued upon exercise of warrants at their original
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exercise pnce $.50'for the-Class A ‘warrants and- $3.00 for the Class B warrants,-at each, warrant holder’s option.
The current market price is well above the $.50 exercise price of the Class A ‘warrants sb no adjustment to. the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 or the nine months ended September 30, 2005 has been
made for the rescission offer. The current market price is below the $3.00 exercise price of the Class B warrants.
Only 22,600 Class B warrants were issued in the period, making our potential rescission liability to'the former Class
B Warrant holders equal to $67,800 plus interest, which amount would be reduced to the extent ofiany sales of the:
underlying common stock by the:former warrant holders. If all warrant holders accepted the resc1ssxon offer, the -
Company would be required to pay $1,340,700 plus interest, which amount would be reduced to the extent of the
proceeds from any sales of the underlying common stock by the former warrant holders. Acceptance of the
rescission offer by all former warrant holders could have a material adverse effect on these ﬁnanc:al statements. The
Company did not make the rescission offer in 2005, as it focused instead on capital-raising, new product launches,
and othér. activities. In 2006, the Company intends to determine whether to make the rescission offer or to allow the
statuté of limitations to continue to.run. through their expiration under applicable state law. ' £

~Front'2001 to 2003, the Company sold shares of our Convertlble Preferred Stock, which is reflected in
these financial statements a§ our Series A Preferred Stock. The Company subsequently discovered that the .
certificate of designation for the Convertible Preferred Stock had hot been filed, and the Company made such ﬁhng
in December of 2004. The delay in filing the certificate of designation may have resulted in the shares of ..
Convertible Prefetred Stock not being validly issued. As of December 31, 2005, there were 66,000 shares -
outstanding. All other convertible preferred stock has been converted to common stock on a 10-to-1 basis, at a
conversion price-of $0.25 per share. Because the current stock: .price is well above the conversion price, no
adjustments to these financial statements have been recorded for this. The Company believes that the conversion to
common stock cures any issues related to the potent1a1 invalid i issuance of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock.
The Company 1 may ‘have rescission Tiability for the 44,000 shares that have not converted as’ of March 21, 2006,
subject to the prior expiration of apphcable statutes of limitation. :

: l
; oy

15\.4-"*‘ ' SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

From January 1to March 21, 2006, 22,000 shares of preferred stock serles A were converted into 220 000

shares of icommon stock. .

“From J anuary 1 to March 21, 2006, no shares of preferred stock, series B, were converted

-«In March 2006 2 consultant exercrsed 100,000 optlons for $30 000 and was 1ssued 100, 000 shares of
common stock. , . N S )

-In February 2006, the burldmg that serves as our prmcrpal location was sold to a third party for gross
proceeds of $4,000,000 and leased back to the company under a ten year operating lease. The term of the lease runs
from F ebruary 2006 through February 2016 Future mmrmum lease payments under thls new lease are as follows

14 O A e e gy

y ; S 2006‘ C o S 2 ' $ 412 500 -
oL, 2007 B § 450,000~ ° v
G E M T g8 - ~$ 450,000 i
‘ C 2009 ' o S T § 450,000
~ =L ..o 2010and thereafter - - . ‘ $3,150,000 : ‘
S ‘ ‘ : ‘$4912500' B ‘

On March 8, 2006, the Board of Directors awarded stock optrons to"14 key employees none ‘of whom are
executlve ofﬁcers for an aggregate of 1,068,000 shares .at the day s closing market prlce of §1. 04

“On March 9 2006 we announced’the signing of 4 a master Vendor Agreement Swith BestlBuy Co., Inc.
Unider the tenns of the Vendor Agreement Best Buy will® dlstrrbute the new Q Line'Gold Home Theater-Surround
Sound Syste\ 1n 618 Best Buy locations throughout the: U.S: cofnmencmg in May, 2006. The agreement provides
that Best Buy w1ll purchase the first 3,090° units of. the Q Lme Gold Home Théater ‘Surround System that we supply.
Followmg the sale of the mmal order of 3 090 umts all addttlonal umts w1ll be supplzed to Best Buy ona '
consignment basis, SRR
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, John Gott, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SLS International, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers.and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

. b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a

significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOHN GOTT
John Gott, Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2006




Michael L. Maples, certify that:
L.
n2.

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SLS Internatlonal Inc

Basedon my knowledge, this report does. not contain any untrue statement ofa rnaterral fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

" Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information'included in this

report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatrons and cash
flows of the regrstrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The regrstrant s other certifying officers and I are resp0n51ble for establishing and marntarnrng
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) * designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such'disclosure .controls and
+ procedures‘to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
“the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
" -those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
. |
b) 'designed such internal control over financial reponing, or caused'such internal control over

' financial reporting to.be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the relrabrhty of financial reporting and the preparation:of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted: accountrng prrncrp]es

¢) ' evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls ‘and procedures and presented
/1n this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the petiod covered by this report based on such evaluation; .and :

d) disclosed in this report any change in the fegistrant’s internal control over financial repoiting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
‘quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
'materially’ affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial réporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audrt committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): |

a)' all srgnrﬁcant deficiencies and material weaknesses i in the desi gn or operatron of internal
control over fihancial reporting which are reasonably lrkely to adversely affect the reg1strant s
ability to record process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud; whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. | !

/s/ MICHAEL L. MAPLES
Michael L. Maples, Chief Financial Officer
March 31, 2006




EXHIBIT 32

Certification of CEQ and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of SLS International, Inc. (the “Company”) for the
year ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), each of John Gott, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Michael L. Maples, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ JOHN GOTT

John Gott

Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2006

/s/ MICHAEL L. MAPLES
Michael L. Maples
Chief Financial Officer
March 31, 2006

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to§906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except
to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A

Amendment No. 1

ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005

Commission file number 001-31323

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Incorporated under the Laws of the LR.S. Employer Identification No.
State of Delaware 52-2258371
1650 W, Jackson, Ozark, Missouri 65721
(417) 883-4549

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Common Stock

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes O No X

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section
15(d) of the Act. Yes [0 No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the past 12 months and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes & No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in the Proxy Statement
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. (J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-
accelerated filer. Sec definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated Filer B  Non-Accelerated Filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act) Yes 0 No B

The aggregate market value of our common stock held by nonaffiliates was approximately $45,277,301 on
March 21, 2006. On March 21, 2006, 46,608,310 shares of our common stock were outstanding, and the closing
price per share of our common stock was $1.13.




EXPLANATORY NOTE - = = =

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December, 31, 2005, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 31, 2006, contemplated that the information to be included in Part Il would be
incorporated into the report by reference to our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2006 annual meeting of
stockholders. We have now.decided instead to amend the report to, include the information required to be included in
Part II1. Items in the original report that are not mcluded herem are not amended and remain 1n effect as of the date
of the original filing.

P .




PART - 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The following table identifies our executive officers and directors on April 14, 2006:

Name Age Position

John M. Gott 55 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Steven Lamar 35 President

Michael L. Maples 56 Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director
Chuck Foudree 61 Director

Robert H. (Robin) Luke 63 Director

Robert Ring 63 Director

John M. Gott, our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director, founded SLS in July 2000 in
connection with the merger between SLS and its predecessor. He was also founder and Chief Executive Officer of
Sound and Lighting Specialists, Inc., the predecessor of SLS International, Inc., which was founded in
October 1994. The predecessor engaged in the sale and installation of sound and lighting systems. In that capacity
he spearheaded our growth with respect to the sale and installation of sound and lighting systems across the world,
including in Carnegie Hall and Disney World in Tokyo. He was our primary salesman through August 2001, when
we hired another salesman. Mr. Gott has also been instrumental in the conceptual design and marketing of most of
our products. Mr. Gott has acted in his current capacities since our inception. He also served as President from our
inception until we hired Steven Lamar in June 2003.

Steven Lamar has served as our President since June 17, 2005. He has spent over 15 years in the financial
services industry. Prior to joining SLS, Mr. Lamar was a co-founder and Managing Partner of BayStar Capital
Management, LLC, a San Francisco-based hedge fund specializing in private investments in public equities (PIPEs).
Prior to BayStar, Mr. Lamar was the Head of Institutional Sales at Shoreline Pacific, where he represented
companies, lenders, and investors in PIPE transactions. From 1989 — 1996, Mr. Lamar served in various positions in
retail, commercial banking at Citibank and Wells Fargo Bank. Mr. Lamar is Vice Chairman and Board Member of”
Allied Container Systems, a designer and manufacturer of turn-key solutions for storage, shelter and training
facilities. Mr. Lamar is a founding member of Ammo Marketing’s Influencer Advisory Board. Mr. Lamar received
his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration with an emphasis in finance from San Diego State
University in 1992,

Michael L. Maples has served as a Director since 2001, and as Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer since June 17, 2005. He has also acted as a consultant, overseeing all of the Company’s accounting and
Sarbanes-Oxley related functions for the past two years. From 1996 through June 2005, he was Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Administrative Officer, Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of TranSystems
Corporation, an engineering, planning, and consulting firm for the transportation industry. From 1994 to 1996, he
was Senior Financial Consultant for Glass & Associates, a consultant to businesses in critical stages of development.
From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Maples was Senior Vice President and Controller for Franklin Savings Association, a
publicly held group of financial companies. From 1987 to 1991, he was Vice President of Finance & Information
Systems for McNally Wellman Company. From 1987 to 1989 he was Treasurer and Corporate Secretary for
McNally Pittsburgh, Inc., a group of privately owned engineering and manufacturing companies supplying
equipment, systems, parts, and service to the international and domestic material handling industry. From 1983 to
1987, he was Controller and Staff CPA for Gage & Tucker, a multi-office law firm specializing in corporate
representation. From 1976 to 1983, he was a Certified Public Accountant, first at Touche Ross & Co., then with a
regional firm, and finally as a sole practitioner.

Chuck Foudree, has served as a Director since July 8, 2005. He also serves on our Audit Committee as
Chairman and on our Compensation Committee. Mr. Foudree served in numerous positions at Harmon Industries,
Inc. from 1972 through 1999, including Executive Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer. He is a
director of Sceptor Industries, Inc. and Carondelet Health and a former director of OTR Express, Inc. and Harmon
Industries, Inc. Mr. Foudree also serves on a variety of community boards including the Harry S. Truman Library
Institute and the St. Paul School of Theology. His past directorships and trusteeships include Truman State
University Foundation, St. Mary’s Hospital Foundation and the Financial Executives Institute. Mr. Foudree is a
graduate of Truman State University with a degree in Accounting. He is a certified public accountant in the states of
Missouri and Kansas.



Robert H, (Robin) Luke, Ph.D., has served as a Director since 2001. He is Professor of Marketing and the
Department Head of the Marketing Department at Missouri State University. He has served as the first Department
Head of two Marketing Departments and directed the development of the MBA/MPA programs for the Unlversrty of
the Virgin Islands. Dr. Luke has owned and developed several businesses and regularly consuits wrth major U.S.
corporations and institutions on marketing issues as-a Senior Consultant with R.H. Luke & Associates. He served
the Academy of Marketing Science as a member of its Board of Governors from 1992 to 1996 and as Vice President
of Development, Vice President and Vice President for Academic Affairs. He presently serves as a Board Member
of the Marketing Management Association. He has given or continues to give service commitments to the Boards of
Directors or Boards of Advisors of the following orgamzatrons Missouri Partnership for Outstanding Schools,
Ozark Greenways, Community Investment Alliance, Sports Directories International, the Community Foundation of
the Ozarks, Vision 20/20, the Downtown Springfield Association, Ozarks Chapter of the Boy. Scouts of Amerlca
A+ Advisory Board of Glendale: H1gh School, and Lake County, Youth Soccer. ‘ A

Dr. Luke has presented numerous papers at international, national and regional marketlng conferences. He
serves on the Editorial Review Board of the Journal of the Academy of Marketmg Science, Journal of Marketing
Management. His writings have’ appeared in over 14 publications. He is the author of Business Careers an
informational source on career opportunities for students, counselors and advisors wishing to know more about
busmess professrons At the age of sixteen, under the name Robin Luke, he wrote and perfonned “Susie Darling,” a
song that sold over two million copies from 1958 to 1960 and became number one around the world. His career as a
recording artist spanned five years and 14 records. He has received numerous awards, including “Distinguished
Fellow of the Academy of Marketing Science,” the Marketing Management . Assoc1atron s Firooz Hekmat Award in
Consumer Behavior and their prestigious Marketmg Excellence Award, “best paper awards” from national and
international organizations, and the Gift of Tlme Award from his home city of Sprlngﬁeld Missouri.

Robert ng has served as a Director since June 21 2005. He has also served on our Audrt Committee and
our Compensation Committee. Sitice 1994, Mr. Ring has-consulted in the areas of business process and strategic
development with companies that compete in retail, manufactunng, distribution and a variety.of service areas. .
Mr. Ring also is a director of Bass Pro Shops, Cobalt Boats and Duckwall-Alco Stores, Inc. Prior to 1994, Mr. Ring
spent 32 years with The Coleman Company. His career at Coleman involved a progression of sales and marketrng
assignments, the Pres1dent/General Manager position of Coleman’s Recreat1on Business, Executlve Vice President
of Worldwide Sales and Marketlng, and most recently President and €00 from 1990 through 1994

“Mr. Ring also serves on a variety of community boards including the Via Christi Research Foundation*
Board, the Kansas Wildscape Foundation Board and the Wichita State University Students in Free Enterprise
Business Advisory Board. His past service includes the Board of’ the Wichita Area Chamber of Commerce the
Board of and two years as Chair of, the Wichita Minority Busmess Development Commrttee the World Trade
Center. Board; the Wichita Committee of 100 Board; and the Wichita Area Technical College Advrsory Board..
Mr. Ring is a graduate of The W1ch1ta State University wrth a degree in Busmess g

r
W

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Company held two meetmgs dunng 2005 The' Board of Drrectors has an~
Audit Committee, a‘Compensation Committee, and a Nominating and Corporate Governanee Committee. The
members of each committee are' Messrs. Foudree, Luke and Ring, with Mr. Foudree serving as Chair of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Luke as Chair of the Compensation Committee, and Mr. Ring as Chair of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. No Director attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the
Board of Directors and the Commrttees on whrch he served durmg the period in 2005 for whrch he was a Director.

-Mr. Foudree qualifies as an audit commrttee financial expert Each of Messrs. F oudree Luke and ng is
“independent” under Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule 14A under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act and is “mdependent”
under Sectron 121(A) of the Amencan Stock Exchange listing standards . r

: Stockholders who w1sh to communlcate dlrectly with one or more Drrectors may do SO by mailing such
communications to the Company’s principal offices:at 1650 W. Jackson, Ozark, Missouri, 65714, attention: CEO.
The CEO will then relay all commumcat1ons to the appropriate Drrector(s)

The Company does not have a pollcy regarding the attendance of Dlrectors at annual meetmgs of
stockholders , ] A, : o L ¥ T




Procedure for Director Nominations by Stockholders

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider all candidates for Director that are
recommended by stockholders. Recommendations should be mailed to the Company’s principal offices, 1650 W.
Jackson, Ozark, Missouri 65714, attention: CEQ, at least 120 days prior to the year’s annual meeting. The
committee gives no special positive or negative consideration to a candidate based on the party that recommended
the candidate.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics applicable to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
controller and other financial leaders, as well as to our employees generally, which is a “code of ethics” as defined
by applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. This code will be made available to any-person,
without charge, by mailing a written request to our principal offices, 1650 W. Jackson, Ozark, Missouri. 65714,
attention: CFO. If we make any amendments to this code, other than technical, administrative or other-non-
substantive amendments, or grant any waivers, including implicit waivers, from a provision of this code to our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or controller, we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver, its
effective date and to whom it applies on our website or on a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. o ‘ : ' :

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who
own more than ten percent of a registered class of our common stock, to file with the SEC initial statements of
beneficial ownership (Form 3) and statements of changes in beneficial ownership (Forms 4 and 5) of our common
stock. Executive officers, directors and greater than ten-percent stockholders are required to furnish us with copies
of all such forms they file.

' To our knowledge based solely on review of the copies of such forms we received, or written
representations from certain reporting persons that no additional forms were required, all filing requirements
applicable to our executive officers, directors and greater than ten-percent stockholders were complied with, with the
exception of (a) the Form 3 filings by Messrs. Gott, Lamar, Maples, Foudree, Luke and Ring, which were filed late
on November 1, 2005, when their due date was October 23, 2005 and (b) the Form 4 filing by Mr. Maples on
January 9, 2006, which reported two sales, one of which was due to be reported on December 21, 2005 and the other
was due on December 27, 2005,

ITEM 11.. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Compensation of Executive Officers

The following table summarizes the compensation received by our chief executive officer, and each of our :
other two executive officers on December 31, 2005, for services rendered to us in 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Long-Term Compensation
. . . . .. Common Stock

Name & Other Annual Underlying
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus(a) Compensation(b) Awards of Options
John M. Gott 2005 § 137,246 § 0 3 14,925 500,000 ’

2004 $ 82212 § 0 3 13,768 ' 25,000

2003 § 60,460 S 0 3§ 11,734 10,000
Steven Lamar(c) 2005 $ 63,692 $ 100,000 § 0 500,000
Michael L. Maples(c) 2005 S 183,653 $ 50,000 $ 0 300,000

(a) Represents signing bonuses of $100,000 to Mr. Lamar and $50,000 to Mr. Maples

(b)  Represents $4,187 in 2005, $4,195 in 2004, and $3,768 in 2003 for payments of medical insurance and
$14,925 in 20053, $9,573 in 2004 and $7,966 in 2003 for personal use of a company-owned automobile,

(¢)  Messrs. Lamar and Maples became executive officers on June 17, 2005, and were not our employees prior to
such date.




_ Stock Options. The following table contains information concerning stock opii(?ns gfrante& to the named
executive officers-in2005. . , . o -
oo W A IS

i o Number.of .-

. . Shares of Per'v:e_xl:tvjc;l‘;:Totstl'l o o ¢ 1 .
. LT . Common Stock - . Options ‘ ) o PR
HE TR e © " Underlying ‘Granted to Exercise A -
: ‘Options Employees in Price Per Expiration: Grant Date

Name s . Granted : Fiscal Year - Share . 'Date(l) © Value(2)
John Gott 500,000 C! 385% - $2.50 - 6/21/2015 $490,000
Steven Lamar " . 500,000 .. 38:.5% $2.50 ’ . 6/2172015 $490,000
Michael“]_;: Maples. . . . 3040,000 L 23.0% 58250 - i6/2"1/2()1'5, 1$294,000

(1)  One-third of the shares betcome exercisable on each of 6/21/2006, 6/21/2007, and 6/21/2008. ‘ .

(2) =~ TheBlack:Scholes pricing todel was used to determine the grant date value. Factors used|in the Black

"~ - Scholes pricing model included: risk-free interest rate of 4.06%; strike-price of $2.50; market price of $2.27;
- .volatility rate of 22.13%; and a yield rate of 0.00%. . b "

The following table séts forth the value of unexercised “in-the-money” options held by our named -
executive officers on December 31, 2005 (the difference between the aggregate purchase price of all such options -
held and the market value of the shares covered by such options on December 31, 2005). Our named executive
officers did not exercise any optiowns‘in 2005. - .

" . Number. ;)f . | o 1‘ Yé]ue of Unexercised,

Shares Underlying ‘ ‘ . '| In the-Money
G o ‘ Unexercised Options at o . Options at

e LR . 12/31/05 (Exercisable/ - : 12/31/05 (Exercisable/
Name . ' ' Unexercisable) - i Unexercisable)
John M. Gott SR - o 35,000‘/‘500,000 $9,700/ 80

Steven Lamar L c *-0/500,000 " . " '$0/80

Michael .. Maples ' . D 30,00<0'1/ 300,000 < 194,850/ $0

Compensation of Directors - S : B : i ‘
... . We currently-provide Directors with an annual grant of options, in an amount to be determined by the

Board of Directors each year, to purchase shares of our common stock at fair market value on the date of grant. We
also pay non-employee Directors an annual retainer of $12,000; an additional annual retainer of $12,000 for the
Audit Committee Chair; a fee of $350 per day or portion thereof for a Director’s attendance at meetings of the Board
of Directors or committees thereof, but only to the extent in excess of four meetings per year; and reimbursement of
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their duties. . o L o
Employment Agreements = :
. On June 17, 2005, we entered into employment agreements with John M. Gott; our Chaitman and Chief
_ Executive Officer;: Steven M. Lamar, our President; and Michael L. Maples, our Chief Operating Ofﬁcer and Chief
Financial'Officer. Each employment agreement has a term-of three years and severancefpayments; equal to six _
months,pg base salary following a termination by-us without “cause” or a termination by the executive for “good
reason'!! ':» Soe T . s M . ' ‘ , . i‘ . A

¥

Mr. Gott’s agreement pfbvides for an annual salary of $180,000, a grant of options to purchase up to
500,000 shares of our common stock at $2.50 per share, and an agreement to grant 500,000 shares of our common
stock to Mr, Gott in January 2006. . ) L

Mr, Lamar’s.agreement provides for an annual séfllary of $120,0QO, a signing bbnus of $11PO,QOO, a grant of

options to purchase up to 500,000 shares of our common stock at $2.50 per share, and an agreement to grant
500,000 shares of our common stock to Mr. Lamar in January 2006. . N }

'+ Mr: Maples’.agreement provides for an annual salary of $250;000; a grant of options to purchase up to
250,000 shares of our common stock at $2.50 per share, and an agreement to grant 125,000 share$ of our common
stock'to Mr. Maples in January 2006. = - - s SO e ’




Each of the options described above were granted on June 21, 2005 and have a term of ten years. The
options vest in one-third increments on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of the option
grant. The options vest in full upon a “change of control” or termination of the executive’s employment by us
without “cause.” :

On March 10, 2006, we entered into amendments to the employment agreements with each of Messrs. Gott,
Lamar and Maples. The amendments to the employment agreements provide that the executives are no longer
entitled to receive the grants of our common stock in January 2006 or, to the extent already received, will return
such grants to us. The executives agreed to voluntarily forego the grants to preserve the availability of shares under
our 2005 stock incentive plan, to prevent dilution of our outstanding shares, and to eliminate the cash required to
fund the related withholding and payroll tax liabilities associated with the grants.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Messrs. Foudree, Luke and Ring are the members of our Compensation Committee. No member of the
Compensation Committee has held any position or been party to any transaction requiring disclosure in this section.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 21, 2006 with respect to the beneﬁciaﬂ
ownership of our common stock by all persons known by us to be beneficial owners of more-than 5% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock, by directors who own common stock and all officers and directors as a

group:

: Number of Percent of
Name ‘ Shares Class(1)
John M. Gott ‘ 7,367,199(2) 15.31%
Steven Lamar ‘ ‘ N 500,000(3) | 1'.07%
Michael L. Maples | | 332,925(4) g
Chuck Foudree ‘ ' , 60,0005) . *
Robert H. Luke ' o | 91,500(6) ¥
Robert Ring _ 55,000(5) T
Officers and Directors as a Group (6 persons) 8,406,624 18.04%

All such shares are owned directly by the named stockholders.

* Less than one percent

(H) Based upon a total of 46,608,310 shares outstanding on March 21, 2006.

(2) Includes (a) an option to purchase 851,022 shares owned by Richard L. Norton for $.05 per share, or if
lower, 50% of the 5-day average trading price; (b) an option to purchase 10,000 shares at $0.25 per share;
and (c) an option to purchase 25,000 shares at $2.21 per share; and (d) an option to purchase 500,000 shares
at $2.50 per share.

(3)  Includes an option to purchase 500,000 shares at $2.50 per share.

4) Includes (a) an option to purchase 5,000 shares at $0.25 per share; and (b) an option to purchase 25,000
shares at $2.21 per share; (c) an option to purchase 250,000 shares at $2.50 per share; and (d) an optlon to-
purchase 50,000 shares at $2.27 per share.

(5)  Includes an option to purchase 50,000 shares at $2.27 per share.

(6)  Includes an option to purchase 10,000 shares at $0.25 per share, an options to purchase 25,000 shares at
$2.21 per share; and an option to purchase 50,000 shares at $2.27 per share.




EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS v : H“ R
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»rOn December 31 2005,, We had the followmg securmes 1ssued and avarlable for future 1ssuance under
equity compensation plans:. ‘ : ' ‘
b ;{;‘ l' i ‘t WL e ! Vi“'.‘; : , : ©

N Number of Securities )

L RTE gy e DT T ¥ Remaining Available for
e e T . Numbér of Securitiesto "~ & (®) ' - . ¢} Future Issuance Under Equity
e Be Issued Upon Exercise of ' :.-Weighted:Average Exercise o Compensation Plans
. ‘ Outstandlng Options, =y ltrrce of Outstandmg Optlons, e (Excludmg Securities Reflected
" Warrants and Rights } : Warrants and Rights o In Column (a))
Equity compensation 2,270,000 shares of " " S1.62pershare  * '~ 1,875,000 shares of”
plans approved by common stock - - :“,"t S L common stock -
security holders ' o ) ‘ i
Equity compehsation - v4,ll4l,5'29“"shares'of B $2 28 per share ™ . o 0
plans not approved: .- . ° common stock . RN :
by security holders S
Total. " =+ = 6,411,529 sharés of - " $1.70 per $hare of . : ”fJf 1,875,000 shares of - -
: 1common stock P Tl : common'stock & v ‘f common stock

For»a description of-the: equrty compensatron plans'not approved by our securrty holders! (whrch consist
solely of mdrvrdual compensation: arrangements for the benefit of consultants or pursuant to promotron agreements)
see note 9 to our financial statements begrnmng on page F l dodE L AN e

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIAN CE

el No reports have been required under Section 16(a) of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 as amended
because our common stock is not reglstered under Section 12 of such act. :

. ,"vr

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS

: E

(a) We entered into a lease agreement with Bull Creek Ranch LLC on December 4, 2004 Pursuant o the
agreement, we agreed to lease approximately 150,000 square feet of property at 1650 W Jackson Ozark, Missouri
through February 28, 2010 at a base rent of $18,750 per month for the first twelve months and $28,125 thereafter,
with. adjustments and additional charges set forth in the agreement. The lease agreement also provided us with an
option to purchase the property for $3,500,000, increasing by 5% for each year after the first year of the lease term.
On February 3, 2005, we purchased the property for $3,500,000, pursuant to the option to purchase As aresult, the
lease agreement termmated John Gott, our President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director, is a manager of, and a
member;owning a 50% interest in, Bull Creek Ranch LLC. As a result Nk Gott had a materral 1nterest in the lease .

agreement and in our purchase of the property.

On February 10, 2006, we sold the property at 1650 W Jackson Ozark Mrssoun to FRS LLC, a Missouri
limited liability company, for gross proceeds of $4,000,000. On February 10, 2006, we entered into a Lease
~ Agreement whereby we agreed to lease our headquarters at 1650 W. Jackson, Ozark, Missouri from FRS, LLC.
Pursuant to the agreement, we agreed to lease the property for ten years, with a lease rate of $37, 500 per month for
the first five years and.$43,750 per month thereafter wrth adjustments and addmonal charges set forth in the ‘
agreement Under, the lease, we are responsrble for expenses for taxes, msurance ma1ntenance and utilities at the ~
property For accountrng and tax purposes the lease 1§ to be treated as an operatmg lease '

' The sole member of FRS, LLC is Rick Gregg, who is also a Member owning a 50% 1nterest in Bull Creek
Ranch LLC. As stated above, Bull Creek Ranch, LLC is'a former ‘owner of the property at 1650 W. Jackson, Ozark
Missouri, but was.not.a-party toithe purchase and sale _or: the lease, described.above, Nevertheless ‘due to the
common; ownership* of Bull-Creek Ranch LLC by Messrs. Gott and Gregg, FRS, LLC, may be deemed as an affiliate
of SLS International, Inc. for certain purposes. We believe that the sale of real gstate and lease described above were
consummated on arm’s-length terms. i TN L

(b Begmnrng in 2004 and thréugh May 2005 we paid $2 500 per month (an aggregate of $45 OOG) to
Mr. Maples to oversee the work by outside consultants performed in connectron with our Sarbanes-Oxley:Act
compliance efforts.




(c) On January 4, 2005, we completed a private placement with Baystar Capital I1, L.P. and three other
institutional investors, at which time Mr. Lamar was a Managing Partner of Baystar Capital Management, LLC,
which resulted in Mr. Lamar having an indirect financial interest in the private placement. In the private placement,
we issued our newly designated Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$15 million. The investors also received five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of six million shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 per share, subject to certain adjustments.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

(1) Audit Fees ~ The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Weaver & Martin,
LLC, for the audit of our financial statements and review of the financial statements included in our quarterly reports
on Form 10-QSB or services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and

regulatory filings or engagements for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $218,785 and $110,900,
respectively. v ,

2) Audit-Related Fees — There were no other audit-related fees billed by Weaver & Martin, LLC for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

3) Tax Fees — There were no tax fees billed by Weaver and Martin, LLC for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004.

4) All Other Fees — There were no other fees billed by Weaver & Martin, LLC for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004.

All services to be provided by Weaver & Martin, LLC are subject to pre-approval by the Board of
Directors, our CEO or CFO. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act prohibits an issuer from obtaining certain non-audit services
from its auditing firm so as to avoid certain potential conflicts of interest. The Company will not obtain any of these
prohibited services from Weaver & Martin, LLC, and the Company is able to obtain such services from other
service providers at competitive rates.
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(b). - Exhlblts L i : y
| ~ The folloWing ﬂoeuﬁﬁeﬁts are filed as exhiBits to-this Amendment. ‘
‘ o '“:1 ..\ b ' B K : . -
Exhibit Where Located
Certifications under Sectlon 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 /SEC. Filed herewith.
Rule 13a-14(a) - IS "y b
Certifications under Sectlon 302: of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 / SEC N I
Rulé-13a-14(a): - N i Filed herewith,
Certification under Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 / 18U. S C. ] ‘ : s
Sectlon 1350 / SEC Rule 13a-14(b) . R ) Filed herewith.
ry ; i
I A (F ‘ [
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By /s/ M. MAPLES

M. Maples
(Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer)

Date: April 28, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 28, 2006.

Signature Title
/s/ J. GOTT Chief Executive Officer and Director
1. Gott (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ R. LUKE, PH.D Director
R. Luke, Ph.D
/s/ M. MAPLES Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and
(M. Maples) Director, :
/s/ M. MAPLES Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(M. Maples) ' (Principal Accounting Officer) ' )




LEFe : . EXHIBIT 31.1

L . oy

-7 CERTIFICATIONS =~ %

L, John Gott, certlfy that

L.
2.

"I Kave rev1ewed this annual report on Form l(] K of SLS International, Inc

. Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit

-to-state a material ‘fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not mlsleadmg with respect to the penod covered by this.report;

I L
Basedfon my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operat1ons and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for the periods presented in this report; ‘

“The’ reglstrant s other certlfylng officérs and T are respon51ble for estabhshmg and mamtammg

disclosure controls and procedures (as definéd in EXchangé Act Rules 13a <15(¢) and 15d- 15(¢)) and
internal control over financial reportmg (as deﬁned in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15(t) and 15d lS(f))
for the-registrant and have: : ‘ -

a)  designed; such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be de51gned under our superv1s1on to ensure that material 1nformat10n relating to,
the registrant, including its consolidated subs1d1ar1es is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is belng prepared g

b) des1gned such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such 1nternal control over -
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the relxab111ty of financial reporting-and the preparation of financial statements for

- . external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles;

¢) . evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the: dlsclosure controls and procedures
as of the end of the period covered. by th1s report based on such evaluatlon and :

d) drsclosed in th1s report any change in the registrant’s internal control over ﬁnanc1al reporting

that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the- reglstrant s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board'of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): -
a). - all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
~ control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, Whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have'a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOHN Golr -
John Gott, Chief Execntive Officer
April 28, 2006




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

[, Michael L. Maples, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SLS International, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132 —15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MICHAEL L. MAPLES
Michael L. Maples, Chief Financial Officer
April 28, 2006




EXHIBIT 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
"~ 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
i Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of SLS International, Inc. (the “Company”) for the
year ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report™), each of John Gott, Chlef Executive Officer of the Company, and Michael L. Maples, ‘Chlef Financial
Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, ptrsuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that: ; : ]

' (1) The Report fully comphes with the requtrements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secuntxes Exchange
Act 0of 1934; and’ ‘

"(2) The information contalned in the Report falrly presents, in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company

; y ‘ » /s/ JOHN GOTT i
- N o John Gott )
o : Chief Executive Officer
April 28,2006

/s/ MICHAEL L. MAPLES
Michael L. Maples -
Chief Financial Officer
April 28, 2006 ‘

This certification accompanles the Report pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 and shall
not, except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley. Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes
of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. J
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